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20 YEARS

Having been blessed with your trust and confidence, Crown Cement proudly announces
its 20 Year Anniversary on the journey towards excellence.
We sincerely thank you tor staying with us on our long joumney.
Your suppart has made Crown Cement a Bangladeshi Global Brand,
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M | Cemmant Factory Ltd. s 2 public limited comoany and one of the
leading manufacturers of cemant in Bargladesh On Decamber 37,
1S it startedits journey with the commetment for providing high

quality cement to e country. 115 brand “Crown Cament” has own
rencwn both at home and abroad.

initially the plamt was installed with a capacity of producing &00tpd
(1an per day} of Portland Cement. With the passing of time the
demand of Crown Cement increased day by day. Thesefore the
spersors expanded the project thrlce, By dint of guaiity Crown
Cement soon gained acceptability both at home anc abroad which
rased the necessity for expancing the plant from initial @00tpd (1an
per day), 80Dipd Znd uret in 2002, 1400 tpd 3rd unit in 2006 and
000 pd Athvunit in 201 1 thereby raising the: tota praduction
capacity o S800tpd Le. 1.740 millian metric ton per anmum,

The comipany has been listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange and
Lhittagong Stock Exchange in 201 1, 15 high growth-agenda have
bean highly appreciated by e sharehalders, and have wan inves-

tors tnst, Ws backwend and forward integration endeswvors have
given new dimensions oS growth platfarm With this end in view,
the associate industrial wits viz, ‘Crowmn Polymer Bagging Lid,
CrowinPower Generation Lid, Crowwn Mariners Ltd, Crapn Transpor-
fation & Logistics Lid, Crown Cement Concrete & Budding Products
Ltd. have been set up and are already in aperation. The company has
glso acquired a handy mex size ooean gomng ship to faclitate
transpartation of raw materiak from abroad, [t s hopefully expected
that these new growth platforms will facilitate creation of mzw
dimersions and frantiers 1o the mother company

M. . Cement Factory Limited.

Crown Cement ploneered in export of cement In 2003 and paved
the way far earnng hard-earned foraign currency. Recenty Crown
Cement achiewied tha Mational Export Trophy (Gold) twice far
dttaining the topmast place among the cement exportersin
Hangladesh

The factony possesses well communications facllity both throwah
water 2nd road. Itis located at West Mukterpur, Munshigon| on the
Bark of the shvar Dhaleswarl, It 5 connected by 2 metallic road
iDhaka-Munshigon] Highway) Bnked with the whole countng



r. IR IGR R
] feafe

a8 X W
9 1.

SR W W o7, @F. wiE, Bt wed it ar cmmrmemeeE e aiife wme we St
SreefreerE W ba FETTeT Qo9 GETE WA I 33500 WRT AR TeteeE, Yeion sl e e e

e 5AT
Ty i
Y. 90 W 303 TIETY Ty T e v o e o e am o7 W e o AR T afeEe
s, R & e |
3, 0o §9 3o05¢ TR WY TEEE I (AT 9 W |
@, T b W AR g sl e e
B, oo T 3ok TIHCE WOE TErEE we A o @ iR i el
2. Tracers <fsters Fomt mme
RS WE
I-:Hl:llll‘. A
wifawy 514 { s weyawe ST, )
S FUENY o5 [ ki
]

Y, 4 FIEWY it WATY GG (B0 (F TR FRONE AT S o i ey 9 oee 9 ofis A
ety Beifipy wewy g4 wame wihanta ooy oo Rerafe woe

5, S WA O vE o i offy P s w B RER e wefere ol v w5 e
WA 8t (W5l w1 4 et S w i g A o, A e, 39 e b)), v e e,
GE - 4, B - 3358 OF WERE w e

o, FREITEE et efEvire witer fErer e 1E AT TS0 STET T T |

|Wmmﬂmmmwmwwmmm;m;mw
| ST AT 4

n M. . Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report Z014-2015




Notice of the
215 Annual
General Meeting

Matice Is hereby given that the 21* Annual Gereral Meeting [AGM) of M. |, Cement Factary Limited will be held on
Tuesday, the 15" December 2015 at 11:00 &M, at the Factory Premises, wWest Mukterpus, Munshigan] to transact the
Tollowing business:

AGENDA:

1. Toreceive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2015
topather with the Reports of the Auditors and the Directors therean

¢. Todedlare the dividend for the year ended 20 june 2015,

3. Toeect Directors in terms of the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.
4. Toappoint Auditors far the year 207 5-£016-and to fix their remuneration.

5. Toappoint the Independent Directors.

By Order of the Board
i
\ 'T“:‘"f:”’ /
Dated: Dhaka e T
25 November 2015 (Md. Mozharul Isiam, FC5)
Company Secretary

1. The members, whose names appeared in the Lompamy's Register ar in the Depository Register on the Hecord Date
ie 17 Novemnber 2015, shall be eligible 1o attend the Annual General Mesting and to receive the dividend

2. A member wishing to appaint a proxy must ceposit the Proxy Farm, duly stamped at the Company's Head Office,
House # 1 & 7, Road & 95, Block # CEN{A), Gulshan North Avenue, Gulshan - &, Dhaka - 7212 not lster than 48
hours befare the time fixed for the Meeting,

3, Admission into the meeting will be allowed on production of the Attendance Slip sent with the notice and
verification of signature of the Member(s} and/or Proxyhalder(s)

(RIFTRRSTECH 3 St W IO eme o7 S e e ety oo et Beer [ T [ e s
SAIEAY ] A A |
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Our vision is to make a contribution to the
nation by creating opportunities in the
arena of industrial growth and
development of Bangladesh, and to

provide a solid foundations for society's
future.

M 1CC

As a modern cement company, we
manufacture cement (Brand name:
Crown Cement) to meet the needs of
clients through innovative products &

services that create value for all our
stakehoiders.
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Commitment
Shareholders - Create sustainabie economic value for our shareholders by utilizing an honest
and efficient business methodalogy.

Community - Committed to serve the society through employment creation, support
cammunity projects & events, and be a responsible corporate citizen

Customers - Render service 1o our customers by using state-of-the-art technology, of fering
diversified products and aspiring to fulfill their needs to the best of our abilities,

Employees - Be reliant on the inherent merit of the employees and honar our relationships.
Work together to celebrate and reward the unigue backgrounds. viewpoints, skills, and
talents of everyane at the work place, at each |evel,

Accauntability

We are accountable for providing guality products & excellent services along with meeting
the strict requirements of regulatony standards ant ethical business practices.

Inspiring. Mativating & Compelling

We're ambitious and innovative. wWe get excited about our work ‘wWe bring energy and
imagination to our work in order to achieve a level of performance, not achieved before, We

achieve a higher standard of excellence, Everything we produce should look fresh and
modarn,

Ability

We have the ability to undertake the responsibility to materialize our commitment, and goals.
In all matters we think ahead & take new initiatives, We can see things from different
perspectives; we are open to change and not bounded by how we have done things in the

past, We can respond rapidly and adjust our mode of operation to meet stakeholder needs
and achieve our goals,

Keep Promisas

Everything we do should work perfectly. in all matters we maintain integrity & exceflenca.
e believe in actions, not In words,

Be Respectiul

We respect our customers, shareholders & others stakeholders and want to fulfill their
needs. We are respectful in regard to all our interactions with them. We always appreciate
comments & sugeestions from our stakehoiders. We are opan, helpful & friendly. We haye
total commitment to customer satisfaction.
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Continually set the latest standards of modern technology in our mdustry to satisfy the needs of customers
through innovative products and senvices,

Contribute to the national economy and the infrastructure development of the country.

Secure the strongest competitive position in our relevant market places through making quality product and
operational excellence.

Be partrer with the best suppliers, dellvering increased value for both the company and our customers.
Be recognized as a respected & attractive company & an emplayer of first choice,

Provide extensive career opportunities through competitive pay & benefits, training & development & a congenlal
working enviranment,

Empower our employees at every level, and integrate them fully into our network

Continually demonstrate our commitment to sustainable environmental performance, and play & pro-active role in
Corporate Social Respansibility (CSR) within our sphere of influence.

Achieve long-term financial performance,
Create secured Investment oppartunity within the country,
Enhance versatility, & diversification through the penetration of new market segments.

Improve administrative & organization structures to review all business lines regularly & develop the best practice
in the industry.

Eamn fareign currency through export,
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Milestones

Our job s to identify ways to increase productivity and efficiency and to promote a sustainable future, No matter how
good we are at service, our success depends more than anything on being able to connect with customers.

in our journey the following years are the symbol of prosperity and progress:

2013
2014

20132

ellé

2011

2010
2009

2008
2002

2000

19594
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: Procured second mother vessel (Crown Victory) for transpartation of raw materials
. Achieved ICMAB Best Carporate Award

: Launched commercial operation of Crown Cement Ready Mix with production capacity of 42,000 cft

concrete per day
Lanched commercial aperation of Crown Palymer Baggng Lid,

: Procured first mother vessel {Crown Vayaper) tor transportation of raw materials

Launched commercial operation of Crown Mariners Ltd

Launched aperation of 4th unit to double the production capacity
Listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange [DSE) & Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE)

- Awarded Mational Export Traphy [Gold) for the year 2005-10

s Awarded MNaticnal Export Trophy (Gold) for the year 2008-09

Launched commercial ooeration of Crown Power Generation Ltd,
Launched operation of 3rd unit with production capacity of 1400MT/Day

Launched aperation of £nd unt with production capacity of B00MT/Day

' Started commercial operation with procuction capacity of OOMT/Day

\Incorporated as a public imited company




Corporate

Profile

Status ; Public Limited Company

Incorporation of the Company : 31 December 19594

Date of Commencement :31* December 1994

Subscription Opened (9" lanuary 2011

Subscription closed ;13" [anuary 2011

Listed with Ohaks Stock Exchange C1E" May 2011

Listed with Chittagong Stock Exchange 5% May 2017

Commercial Production : 13" October 2000

Mature of Business s Manufaciwring ard Markebng of Crdinary
Fortland Cement and Portland Composite Cement

Credit Rating  Entity - AAZ Short Term - 57- 2

Authorized Capitas | Tk, 5,000,000,000

Paicd up Capital (T 1,485,000,000

Marponer |

Mo, af Shareholders 126714
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Board of Directors

AN i

F]

Sitting from left Mohammead |shangr Alam [Chaimian), Alhaf Md. Ehabiruddin Mola (Managing Director)

Standing from right: ™4, Habitir Rahman Motan, FCA [Executive Directon, Moka Mohammad Majnu (Add tonal Managing Director,
Grtam Mphammed (Indegendent [rector), Md Alemer kabir [Sddtional Manzging Directorl, Md Almas Shimul (Trector),

Fraf. Or. Shakh Shamsuddin Shmed {Independent Directar], M4, Mizarur Rehman Mallz [Director),

Md. Mazharul Iskam, FCS {OM & Dompany Secretany], Shahiar [stie Halbm, FCA [CM B CRD)
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Sponsor Shareholders
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Audit Committee

Gedam Mahammad
Crharman

7.

d
Hd. AMamgir Kabir Mofla Mohammad Majnu M. Mizarur Rahman Molla
Momber PMember Member
Lendars fuditors
Jne sk Limited ks Wi Chomthuny B Cou
|amura Bark Umitad Chertenad ocountante, STHC Sneban [Bh Soor
Frime Barg Lmited =9, Karwan Bagar Commirtal Argd, [hae 1215
G s
castern Bare Lmited HegiFtered Office
Unitest] Commimeic A Bank Linited et Mukterpur, Mundigen
Shahiakal kslami Bark Umited
IFI Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank Limited
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AdVISOrsS

Engr. Major General Hameed Al Hasan (Retd.)
LLTE A

Engr. A. Majid Chowdhury Engr. Md, Shah Aam
Aiscr Terhrical Afvisor (Marketing & Saleg)
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Management [eam

M. . Cement Factony Lid. has a team of skited, qualified and experienced Engineers, Expert Marketing Team, Chemist and
Techniciens under whase supervision, guidance and direct participation the production activities are cammied out. Behind
the screen, there Is a promising, hones anc expenienced management team to oversee and manage the whole production
& distribution network

The sponsors of the company had their experience of forty years in cement trading & manufacturing. From ther
experience they have learned that there s no alternative to quality, comect welght of goods and rendering of
satisfactony services to customers.

The efficient management team abides by,

1. integrity in aF thelr dealings.

2. Excefience in everything they do

3. Total commitment to customer's satisfaction,
. Thinking a~ead and taking mew initiatives.

S &

HMd. Habibur Rahman Maollah, FCA Engr. Saiful Alam Engr. Md. Sahidur Rahman Engr. A.5.M, Fahim Uddin
Exprutiee Directar Exeriiiie Dirachar Sr O [Maketing & Sabe) g GMITacknical)
{orooate Faciory Operations

o

Cagrt. Hashemn Ahmed Hﬂ.l'l.lrl-u'lll-ﬂ'll'l'l'lﬂlﬂ..l.r Md. Moxharul lslam, FLS Saroj Kant Chakraborti
1 (Shpping) M {Froorement) M & Company Secratany M gHR

Shahriar 1sitag Halim, FCA M. Shahid Lllah Khan Talukder Shakirul 15iam
o 06 (Invternal fAudit) CGH (Admind
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GEInERE

Statement

Dear Sharehalders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my gratitude and greetings 1o all the respected stakeholders for
their continuous suppert and athention in achleving excelience in the performance of our company. | would also like to take
the opportunity to thank you for providing me a unkgue opportunity 1o share and exchange our thowghts 2nd views on the
performance of the company In the past year and the potentials and possibilities going forward

In 2015, despite of many difficuities from the external erwironment, your company performed well in terms of growth and
profitability. After & very towsh competition we wers able ta grow our volumes by 5 54%, our revenue by 3.42%, and created
substantial value for our Sharahobders. As a result, net profit before tax for the financlal year was Tk, B5G.23 milllon

Durnrg the year ended 30 June 2015 your company was able to perfarm better. The osrent year's tumowver was
Te. B.264 24 million 2s against Tk, 799064 million of thie last years, resutting 242 % growth in the currant year comparad to
the previaus year, The Gross Profit grew by 12.29% that meant 1o 2 good leap from Tk 1.25892 million to Tk 141359
millon

Considaring this business performance of the Company, the Board of Directors proposed 25% Cash Dividend Le, T, 250 per
ordinary share of TK. 10000 each which wifl be placed In the Annual General Meating to be held cn 15 Decemiber 2015 for
approval of the honarable shareholders.

| wanit to acknowledge and offer my heartfelt thanks to everyome on wiom the Company refles for necessary support. | aso
waznt to acknowledge my debt to the Board of Directors for thedr ongoing guidance and thelr iInvaluable support tome during
the period under reference. | would like to extend my sincere thanks to the vaiued lerders, customers, suppliess, regulators
for thelr continued suopart. | would also llke fo convey my appreciation to the employvees of the Company for thelr dedicated
service. And finally, [ would ke to express my gratitude to the valued shareholders for rendering support to continue onour
path towards sustalnable and profitable growth

Thark you for Interest in M. Cement Factony Lid
N e

&

[Huhammldjiﬂngrr Alam)
Chalrman
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Managing
Director's

Message

Distinguised Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum Wa-Rahmatulizh,

I Heel highly delighted to mfiorm the Sharehodders that we, the M. | Cement Factory Limited had performed well aftes a very
irconveniente enyircnment by increasing our gross profit by 12,29% 23 good leap from Tk 1,25897 million to Tk 1471369
million ard created substantial value for our Sharenolders

Your Cosmpany ensires consistent quaity at the every stage of production, Dur plant is supported by &n in-house modern
laboratony with the latest state of the art equipment. Your Company has already established a well equippes Concrete
Testirg Laboratory namely, Toncrete Research and Testing Lab’ at the Corporate Office premises for quality assurance
Besides this, your Company is installing 5th unit with an additionsl capacity of 4200 MT per day which will raise our existing
production capacity of 5,800 MT per day to 10,000 MT per day. In additon to our existing Ocean Going Mother Yessel
‘™. W Crown Vioyager' we are addng another Orean Going Mother Vessel "M, W, Crown Victony® with a capacity of £3,580 MT
to-confirm the availability of best guality of raw material for our best cement

Cur goal remains 1o become the undisputed leader in the cement market in Bangladesh and alsa in Export. However, the
upcoming busness trerd of Bangladesh makes us confident that we will reach our goals with our advantageous geographical
positioning in atteactive merkets in Bangladesh, our high degres of operational efficiency, we consider ourselhes
well-equipped to face the challenges and take advantage of the opportunities in the following year

On behalf of the management, | would like to thank the sharehalders, members of the Board of Directors, reguiatory bodies,
cliznts, lenders, suppfers, emptoyees and 8l the well wishers far their continued tnast, support end cooperation,

Thank yau very much.

(Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla)
Mamaging Directoe
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Report
< of the Board of

Directors

{Under Section 184 of the Companles Act 1994 and Netification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-
V58/134/Admin/d4 dated 7 August 2012 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.)

Dear Valued Shareholders,

It Is the great pleasure and privilege of the Board of Directors of M. L Cement Factory Limited towelcome yvou all to
the 217 Annual General Meeting of M. | Cement Factory Limited and present the Dinectors’ Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 20 |June 2015 as well as the Auditors’ Report of the Company for
your kind consideratian, approval and adoption.

Industry Outlook and ossible wture evelopment in the Industry

The Cement IndusTy of Bangiadesh has witnessed significant growth in e past two Decades. Till the last of the
mireteenth century Bangladesh was fully dependent on Imported cement. Some enthusiastic entrepranears
ventured into setting up cement plants during 1587 to 2000 which opened a new era In this sectorn. Graduaty,
observing the potentiality of this sector, ane after another cement factory began 1o set wp, some existing one aro
also resorted to expandng with additional capacities and shuation had soon reached such a stage that capacity
excepded demand leading to acute unhealthy competition. The manufacturers then began to seek market In
overseas countries, which also proved bleak excepting exporting to nelghboring country i0a limited scale,

The demand of Cement In our couniry, approcaemately 20 mitkon Metnic Ton s still more than twiz tmes lower than
the Industry capacity of 40 million Metric Ton, Bangladesh is ready to receive the wave of much anticipated
development in terms of public infrastructure, communication and housing facilities. Accordng to the Glotal Cement
Directary 2014, the Chirese Cement Industry consists of 812 integrated coment plants with a combined production
capacizy of 1.34 Bntdyr. K is a burming example of wihat is in store for cement brands operating In countres with a
genuing developmental focus. Bangladesh #its the descriptions just right. %0 ina way the cement industry in
Bangladesh Is headed for a revolution,

I recent studies, the per capita cement consumption of Bangladesh was found tobe 105 KG, which is befvnd India's
217 K, Malaysia STOKG, South Korea 705 KO, Ching 1700 K. These statistics focused the daim thet Bangladesh
I= yet to undertake much phwsical infrastructure development efforts, Cement (s the Daskc material for
infrastructural development, which the country needs for fostering of trade and commerce,

“ M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 2014-2015




Irt & six seasoned country like Bangladesh has recenty bullt concrete road in some areas, the construction cost of
which is 20-25% high rather than the asphalt road But the longevity of concrete road is more than several times
companing with traditional asphalt road so that concrete road is economical and sustainable. S0 concrete bullding
will play & vital role for economic development. Some countsies like Southaastemn area of Ching, Vietnam, Indonesia,
Malaysia, Nigena and neighboring India have taken comprehensive implantaton plan for concrete road, so far they
have impigmented 4 wide range area and the resull (S wery encouraging. Adopting this process of road
construction the utifzation of cemenit will be increased i one hand on the other pubic exchequer will not be drained
out in mantainng of roads and highways every year, There are many cther unearth appkcation for cement not yet
harpessed, So our cement industry has great potentizlity for development, We haoe tha? the Sargladesh Cement
Industry will go a long way ahead.

Performance

Ower the years the Company experienced 2n increase of its sales revenoe, This inargase was driven by the superior
quaity of our products, the strength of oo distribution channel and the promotional activities adopted by the
Compary. Far mstance, the chemical compaosition and grinding fineness of our products & cosely manitored in
order 1o ersure compliance to Sargladesh relevant standare 150 9000:2008, Banglacesh Standards & Testing
Institution (35T, Bureau of Indian Standards (BS), inreality the Quality of our products overiaps these standards.

Future Plan

The demand for our cement s Increasing day by day. To meet the Increasing demand, we are going 1o s&t upour 5th
unit with an additional capacity of 4,200 MT per day, in addtion 10 our existing capacity of S800 MT per day,
therehy raising the tota production capacity to 10,000 MT Per day, The increased Preduction capacity will meet the
targeted Sales through our effectwe promotional branding and efficlent sakes workforce. As the production
capacty incressng 1o maintain the avaiability of quaiity raw material we ar2 adding another Ocean Coing Mother
Wessal "M, W, Crown Yictory® with a capadty of 43,980 MT, We belleve, this will enable your company to gain the
market share from the prevaiiing competitve market environiment.

Vision 2020

lie forecast that a brand like us has to go Seyord the boundanes of being a mere product and became an extraordingey
customer experence of satisfaction On top of that, it Is 3 soclal entity that has to keep it's surounding, ewionment,
peapie and the nation i mind and axist for a greater poad Hence, the sirth of Crown Vision 2020, an nitiatie of a brand
which has poneered the Bangladeshi cement export, and 1l date proudly, leading the industry- Crown Cement, Crown
Wision 2020 & strongly basid on six dillars:

Portfolia: \we aim to ventune info prospective and winning business ideas and Concepts
Productivity: The source of cur growth wil be efficient produc tivity of our resources.
Profit: We exist for wealth and profit mammization of our sharehoklers and we intend tomeintain it as we dd in the past,

People: Wi take care of our peonle Le employees and we wani 1o take pride by saying Crown Cement - run by you, un
for your,

Planet: The plonet & dur home and we must keeg aur bame clean and Shiough sustainable development and make it a
better place far bving for the next generation.

Partners: A winnng brand ike Crown Cement neacs winning parmers and we are lobkng to grow together with our
PArines,

Risk Factor

Trere are varkas risks associated with ranning of 1he activities of the Company. Although, risks of the industry are
centinuously evoling, the Company has taken reasonable steps to identify material risks that may hamper the
Business of the Company and was adopted preventive measares in this respect

Interest Rate Risk

As the Company uses working capita oan and other facllities with variadie Interest rates, It Is highly exposed to
Interest rate risk. To minimize this exposure, the Company |s emphaslzing on offshore financing, the interest rate of
wihich is substantialhy lower as such this will minimize the Intersst rate risk,
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Exchange Rate Risk

As the Company Imparis raw materlal and exports cement, It is exposed (o exchange rate risks. As revenue Trom expors
makes up a small partioe of our total revenue and akso raw materials is imported by akmost every cement companies inthis
countny so any exchange rate fluctuation will equally affect all the Cement companies. Therefore, any exchange loss can
be absoebied by an imcrease n product price.

Overcapacity Related Risk

overcagaaty in the Industry is @ matter of concern as it can significantly increases competition and price confrontation
among the Market of the Cement companles. But your company IS wall aware of this risk as we strive 1o explone new
xpart potentizl geoeraphic sraas with our efficient Salas & Marketing workforce ard aur best effart 1o ensure quality
products as well as ascendency i customers reach will fadiitate us toIncrease our capadity utilizaton rate

Technology Related Risk

Anexpert workforce s working on the suppart far the Harmenious technological Innovation 5o that the innovation might
not tum these machineries nbsalete. However, management is veny much aware about such technology related risks ang
continuously keeging the Company technologicaly updated

Sales Risk

s the ragid expansion of produc tion capacity, the Company has started huge promotional activity with a large number of
expert saies workforces to mitigate sales risk,

Price Risk

Price rsk represents the risk that the falr vaue of feture cash flows of a financial statement will fluctuate Secause of a
chatge in meskeal prices Hnance department estimates the product cost and the marketing depariment, on comparing
other similar indusiries determings the market price of & product aifter adding reasonsble profit to make it competitive

Operational Risk

The ircreasing croduction 'ed to an immediate increase In sales due to high demand of owr product. However, 35 revenue
shared rapidhy, the Company akea had to mcur additional costs associated with higher sakes, As the Company increased ifs
procuction and cperating effidency over the year, the increase in revenue was much higher than that of its cost. Thus the
coerational fisk is mEim2ad,

Quality Control Risk

In the face of a higner competitive market quality is most important then the price. The company exerts much empnEss on
ensLring of maintenance of high quality of Its progucts. b this respect all measures have been undertzlken ang continuous
viglence are being made, Have ipdated its lah with required testng mstruments and employing qualfied expests

With general risks and all otfer categores of risks discussed above, it may be deemed that the company is in almost safe
and sk free position In addition, the best that can be achieved IS reasonable management of the risk to which the
fompany B exposed through a sound management process based on most accurate, Smely and compretersye
maragement information avallable

State of Company's Affairs

In 2015, youw Compary faces stiff competition & competitors with increased capacity forced cement pices down,
Daspit & very competitive and challengng year, your company was able to perform better during the year under
reference. The cuent year's turnover wes T B.264 24 milllon as egainst Tk, 799062 milion of the last year, resulting
342% growth in the current year compared 10 the previous year, The Gross Profit grew by 12.29% that meant to a good
leap from Tk, 1,258.5¢ million to Tk, 1.47 365 milion

Export

Before 1995, Bangladesh imoorted Cement and started exporting from 2003, The brand that ploneered expart was
none other than 'Crown Cement’ the brand of M | Cement Factory Ltd Presently exports are also being-Carmying out
competing with the product of importing countres. Cement export data says that Crown Cement achieved around
37% of the national export woksme in cement and senificantly contributes to country's econamy by eaming foreign
rumency, By taking 3 Bangladeshl product beyond the Sorders ‘Trown Cemert’ & the only brand, which kas besn
awarded with National Export Tropiy (Gold) twice consecutively for the years 2008- 2005 and 2009-2010, During
the year under review we sarned forsign exchangs to the tune of about Tk 45263 millian
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Information Technology (IT)

To adcress the requirement of Generaticn T, a new group of tech-savvy Consumers sparc an immersive,
interconnected et indviduaized cultural miliey, Information technology (1IT) has become a vital & striategic corer
store of our business, As we are growing a5 a customer service oriented company, the role of [T (s getting begger
gy Dy dhang. Adbermpd 16 build [T governance backed emwiranment can be raced in our company by loaking at bow it
s bieing used across the businesses

With the mindset of "Go Green’. we move towards with owr “Vision 20207 goal. We increase our electronic
fransactions instead of paper works. We are transforming our daily activities inte computer based system which
hedps our client 1o et their senvices on time,

We befieve, It |5 our duty to update our valued stakeholders about our actidties, We are going 1o launch our new
dynamic, e-commerce based and interactive wedsite by this year,

To fulfi our customer's reguirements. we ase expandng our IT Facilities further by including Global Standard ERF,
setting indecendens 1T faclities and Data Recovery (DR] sites,

Safety, Health and Environment

Safety, Health & Environment i 2 vital part of Crown Cement's joumey towards sustainatle development. Our goal
is o ensure Zerd harm to people. We befieve that haalth & safety are core values that must be incorparatedinto al
aspect of our business. We eguip cur employess and contractors with job specific Personal Protectve Equipments
[PPE}, which leading us 1o establish & strong safety culture. We have sufficient equipments to control and prevent
emviranmental degradation. The company is accountable for prevention of injuries and occupational iliness whach
has been minimized shrough proger training to al 'ievel of employees.

We believe In wsie leadership and accountabllity for health & safety at all levels throoghout the arganization,
Financial Results

The financizl results for the year ended 30 june 201 5 = @ven beiow:

: Amount

Particulars 1Tiki]|
Hetained earmings - Ik 569841470
(Carried forwerd from previous year)
Add: Revaluation Reserve and deferred tax iability realized Tk 23900S3
Total Reserve Te 572231563
Add: Met Profit for the year Tk B48B50994
Total funds available for appropriation Tk1.221.082557
Proposad Dividend: Cash Dividend 8 25% Tk, 371,250,000
Unappropriated profit Tk B4GB32557
Dividend

Lansidering the Business growth of the Compamy, e Board of Directors s pleasad to recommend a cash divldend
of 25% e, Tk 2.50 for each Ordinary Share of Tk 10,00 for the year ended 30 June 2015,

Contribution to the National Exchequer
During the accounting year ended 30 june 2015, the Company has contributed Tk, 2070601 855 to the National

Exchedquer thraugh fallowing mannern (Taka in million)
| 201415 | 201314 201213 2011492 201011
Advance ncome Tax 321 3¢9 335 419 163
VAT 1,196 L1E3 921 76b a4
Customs Duty 554 472 417 276 270
Total 207 1.970 1.668 1,461 978
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Director's Election and Re-appointment

Pursuant 1o the provisions of the Companies Act 1994 and clause No. B1 of the Articles of Associaton of the
Company cre-third of the Directors shall retire by rotation inevery Anmusl General Meefing Acoordingy, 2 (hwn)
directors of the company will retire In the 21 Annual General Meeting. The retlring drectors are

1, M Mizanur Hahman Mata

7, M Alams Shimul

Being eligibie they offer themsetves for reglection. A brief profile of the Cirectors are disclosed In Annesre-y,

Governance, Ethics and its compllance

Coed povernance and ethical conduct provide the foundation for everything we do at M| Cement Factory Ltd. They
heip us earn trust, manage fsks, foster sustainable growth and bulld a resbient business, We aim to tackie
challenging issues head an, make our communications and processes simale, hold everyone accountable and
empower all our empioyess to do what's right Gur Code of 3usiness Conduct a5 well as our intemal ethics upkesps
2nd talored training, hetos employees make ethical dedlsions. We believe continucus supervisian In every business
practice 5 the key to sustam in & leadership rofe, Thetefore o Company IS directed, adminsterad and comiied with
the set of laws, polickes and procedures exerted in Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission's (BSEC)
Motification No, SECACMRRCDVZ006- 1 58/1 34/Admind44 dated 7 August 2012, Companies Act, 1994 and Listing
Regudations, 2015 by Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited. The Directors’ declaration, Sharebolding pattern and MO &
CFTs declaration to the board for the year ended 2015 are agpended as Annexure | Y and VIl respectively, Further,
the Corporate Governance Compliance Report and a Certiticate of Compliance required under the said Gudelines, as
prowioed by Mis, ACNASIN, Chartered Accountants is dso annexed to this repart as Annexure Vil

Independent Directors

As per the Corporate Covernance Guideires dated 7 August 2012 lssued by the Bangladesh Securities and
Fachange Commission (BSEC), considesmg & [six) Shareholder Tirectors in the Board, twio independent Directors
hawe Deen appointed, namesy-

) Mr. Colam Mokammad, a retired corporate officlais with vast experience and

B Frof. O, Shaikh Shamsuddin Ahmed, Frofessor of Finance Dept., Chaka University,

1t may b= mentigned here that the above noted two Independent Directors will complete their tenure of the first

term and as per Comorate Governance Guideline they are eligitée for reappantment for the second term, The Board
of Directors approved their sppointnent tar the second term, which will be plzced hefore the honorabie

Sharehokders in the upcoming 21* Annual General Meeting for approval,
Audit Committee of the Board

Fhe Audit Committes reviews the quarterly, half-yearly and annual Financial Statements and statements of refated
party fransactions Also it reviews adequacy and effectivensss of fingncal reporting process, accountng policies,
interna control and risk management process. it Is akso responsible for overseeing the management letter along
with performance, appointment and re-appointment of external audtors, Currently, our Audit Commitles consists
af the following Directors:

5L No. ~ Name Position Status
] Mr. Golam Mohammad Independent Cirector Chaisrman
2 Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir Director ‘Member
3 Mr. Malka Mohammad Majnu Director Member
L] Mr. Md, Mizanur Rahman Molla Ditector Mernber
Auditors

Tre exdsting auditors of the Company Més. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co, Chartered Accountants shad retine at the
1% Annual General Mesting and has completed a consecutive three years term, A5 per Bangladesh Secunties B
Exchange Commession (BSEC) notification no SECACMRRCDZ00S-193/1 C4fdmin datec 27 july 2077, every
puble listed company shall not appoint any firm of Chartered Accountants as its statutory auditass for a
consecutive period of three years, Therefare, Mfs. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountznts become
Ineligitie to get appointed for any further year, Under the crcumstances, from amaong some of the proposals for
appointment of auditers the Board of Direciors has recommendsd Mis Syful Shameul Alam B Co, Chartered
Accountants to be appointed as external auditors for the year ending 30 June 2016
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Post Balance Sheet Events

Subsequent to the Balance Sheet date, the Soaed of Directars has recommended a Cash Dividend of 25% and
purchased anotherOcean  oing Mother Yessel for the Company,

CSR Activities

Apart from prafit making. your Company equally emphasize its obligation towards the society. You woukl be hapoy
to note that we have bean continuing various activities to perfoem Corporate Social Responsibility, some of which
are menticred below:

1. Education of the Blinds

2. Merit Scholarship.

3. Winter Cloth dstributon,

4. Awarding Financial Assistance to the meritorious son and daughter of our Dealers/Retaliers.
5. Anancial Assistance in repairing Bridge/Clulvert etc

Our Gratitude

Cur stupendous pariormance of the yes under review dernostrates the dedication and support to Compaey by its
employess at the front and by those numercus stakehoders and our brand users offstage. In this context, the
Board of Directors would like 1o extend its foremaost regards and agpreciation 1o the valued sharehalders and other
Stakehoiders of the Company for their contimeed patronage and guidance o the company that led 1o the
achievements.

We gratefuty acknowledge the valuable hedy and advice that we have always received from our esteemed
sharehaiders, not anly doring the deliberations of the Annual General Mesting, but at other times as well. We greatly
vaue the unstinting and ready support and co-operation of our Clients and we assure them that It will be our
constant enckeavor to prove worthy of the trust they have repasedin us. To themand to the growing meamber-of our
woell wishers we offer cur profound thanks.

We also deepty appreciate the help and co-cperation that we have received from the various Ministries, the
Covernment of the People’s Republic of Bangladesh, Matianal Board of Revenue (NBR), Board of Imestment {BOI),
Registrar of |oint Stock Companies and Firms (BJ50], Bangadesh Securities and Fuchange Commission (BSED),
Central Depository Bangladesh Umited [CDBL), Dhaka Stock Exchange Limsted (DSE}, Chvttagong Stock Exchange
Limited [CSE] the Company's Bankers, Insurers and Financial Institutions, Yendors, the Press and Media and other
Business Partrers and its staff have aways been very helpful and their advice and gudance have made it possible
for us to run the affairs of the Company smoothly. 'We would ke to express our sincere thanks for extending their
helpful hands

Wwe are proud of the unswervng lovalty and devotion of our staif, whose dive, energy and sxill have helped the
Company o reach s present position

Cri behal of the Board

Dated, Dhaka {Mohammed Jahangir Alam}
&7 October 2075 Cralrman
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Annexure |

Compliance of Natification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012

1. Board of Directors

1.1 Board Size
The mumber of members ol the Board of Girectors as on 30 june 2015 stands at & {excludng 2 independent

Directors) which i within the imets given by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (B5EC),
1.2 Independent Director

i) In terme of the provision under this sub clause the Beard of Directors has nominated £ (two) ndependent
Directors, whose appoiniment were ultimately approved in the Annual General Meeting are namely- Mr. Golam
Mohammad and Praf. Or. Shaikh Shamsuddin Ahmed.

(i) The Independent Diractors, nominated by the Beard of Directors meet the entive regurement as escrbed
uriler the sub-clause (i) of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Motification under
reference

(iil) In terms af provision of sub-clause (il of the Notificaton under reference the appointment of independent
Rirectors which needs approval of the shareholders in the 219 Anrwal Ceneral Mesting.

(W) The post of the Independent Directors was not vacant for mare than 90 days
(v} The Board of Directors has lakd down a Code of Conduct for all members of the Board
(vl} As per sub-clause [vi) of the Notification, the tenure of office of the independent Director as nominated
aliove shall be 3 (threa) years which may be extanded tor 1 (one) temm only.
1.3 Qualifications of Independent Director (ID)

i) The Independent Cirectors nomnated by the Board of Drectors are highty gualified and knowledgeable
person. They are able to ensure compiance with financlal regulatory and corporate laws and can make
meaningful contribution to business,

{ii) The nominated Independent Directors poses more than minimim requirement of twelve years of corporate
management / professional experiences and can make meaningful contribution towards the business of the
Company

fiii) Mo relaxation of gualifcation of the independent Directons & reguired

1.4 Chalrman of the Board and the Managing Director

The position of the Chalrman of the Board and 1 Managing Director is separate individual, The roles of the
Chairman ane: the Managing Director are clearly defined in the Articles of Association of the Company.

1.5 The Directors Report to the Shareholders
All the requiraments have been fulfilled.
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Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit (HOIA) and Company Secretary (CS)

Thres separate persons from different spedalized discipline have been appointed Their nole has been defined by
the Board. The CFO / C5 regularly attends the Board Meeting

Audit Committee

Thee Audit Committee, as a sub-Commettes of the Board, nas been constituted with the Independent Director a5
Chairman and three other Directors. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary 1o the Committes Role of the
Audit Committee a5 per provision of the Bargladesh Securites and Exchange Commission (BSEC) regulation,
nave been duly adoated by the Board, Their Reports are Deing subivitted as per Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) requirements,

External/Statutory Auditors

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (B3EC) guidance has been strictly followed in engaging
External / Statutory Auditors.

Subsidiary Company
There s no subsidary company of M, |, Cement Factory Limited.

Duties of the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer

The provisions of Bangladesh Securites and Exchange Commission (BSEC) regulation are beng complled with on
regpular hasis

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance
Requirements on the above are beng compied with
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Annexure ||

The Directors’ Report on some areas as per the Condition No. 1.5 of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Guideline

¢ Related Party transactons are depicted In the Note Mo, 40 of the Sotes to the Financlal Statements

o Remuneration of the Directors has been shown in the Note Mo, 29 of the Notes to the Financial Statemests.

® The FAnanciz’ tatements of the company give a true and fair view of the company's state of afairs, result of its
operation, cash flows and changes i equity,

® Proper books of account as required by law have been kept.

& Appropriale accounting oolicies have been followed in formulating the Fnancia Statements and accounting
estimates wene reasonable and prudent,

® The Financial Statements were prepared In accondance with international Accounting Stancards {IAS) / Bangladesh
Accounting Standards [BAS) / International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS) / Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards (BFRS) as applicable in Bangladesh

* Thenterna control system = sound i design and & effectvely implemented and monitored
There s po Sinificant doubt about the comparn™s aility 10 Conlimee 45 a going Concern,

®  Thereis ni sinificant deviation from the operating result of the last year,

o Key operating and financlal data of at least preceding five years and the current year have been presented on
Annexane-|ll,

# The rumber of Board Meeting and Audit Committee Maeting durine the period from 1 July 2014 to 30 june 2015 and
the attendance are given below,

Board Meeting  Audit Commlttee Meeting
it Aume Held Attendance Held Attendance
1 Mr. Mohammed |ahangir Alam 15 15 NIA MiA
2 |Ahai Mo Khadiruddin Mota 15 4| N A
3 |Mr, Md Alamgir Kabir 15 15 | & =
4 |Mr. Molis Moharmmad Majnu 15 5 | 8 7
5 |Mr. Md.Mizanur Rahman Molla 15 14 g B
6 (M Md Almas Shimul 15 | A i
7 Ir, Golam Mohammard 15 15 g g
(independant Cirector) '
Prof. Dr. Shadkh Shamsuddin Anmed
B |iindependent Director) | 15 1= RA | DA
Mr. Md. Mozharul lslam, FCS 1 15 q g
2 Company Secretary K
10 EWE Ishifan Habim, FCA e - X g

& Thepatiesn of shareholding as required by clause 1 5] of the BSECs Notficztion dated 7 August 2012 stated in Annexure 1Y,
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Annaxure [l

summary of key operating and financlal data of preceding five years and the current year

INCOME AND EXPENSES

Particulars
REVENUE
Cost of goods sold
GROSS PROFIT
a. Administrative expenses
b Sefing & cistribution expenses
cath
(rther operating incomse
OPERATING PROFIT
Financial income / (expensas)
Gther non-aperating income
share of profit from associates
Contribution 10 WPPF
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Incerme tax
NET PROFIT AFTER TAX
Earnings per share (Taka)

201415  2013-14
8,264,241 7,990,643
BESOSMS) 673727
1,413,692 1,258915
157.173] 114,208
295305, 231034
452478) 345240
23460 23430

984,673 937,105
(131557 (66211}

BE30, 40980
39301 21556
42872| 44454
856,236  BB9.076
207385 214486
546,851 674,389

437 454

2012-13
6,829,697
2731175
1,098,522
12012
200,078
312.080
36,035
822467
74671
18504
8,435
44,054
ae1,087
215718
665,369
4.48

2011-12
5,657,601
4911278
746,324
B9.367
146,758
235625
B4,193
574,892
177528
27830
6.295
37,174
749771
184010
585,761
381

2010-11
402221
3254014
768,257
68,182
152,221
220403
5159
606,014
95,083
13728

039
680,785
244850
435,936
3.23

(Taka in D0}
2009-10
3,127,352
2425806

701,546

a7
127073
174,790
44174
570,930
49483
8926

531,373
159,265
332,108
439

M. |. Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 2014-2015



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property. plant and equipments
Caprlal work-n-prograss
Investment in Assoclate Companles
CURRENT ASSETS
nyestment i shares
Mveriones
Trace recehvables
CLament account with Sister Concems
Other recevables
Advances. daperats and prepayments
Advane icome 12
Cashant cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’' Equity
Share cepital
Shave premium
Retaned eamings
Reveluation reseve
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Long temn borrowng net off cument maturity
Lighiities for gratuity
Dizteired tax liabilty
Current Liabilities & Provislon
Trede peyadles
{ther payshies
Clrent portion of ang term barowings
Shart term lpan
Prowision for tax liabilties
Liatiities for WRPF
Paable 1o PO applicants
Unclaimed dividend
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2014-15
4,210,152
4703552
SN

96,956

7,754 595
126227
722241

1,165679
o137
53,961

67 850
892103
3502416
12,061,703

5,879,330
1485000
21956560
1221083

216,687

838,392
426,933
58990
5140
5,343,981
1 datee
150168
558232
4142817
292,354
4efie

| £ 840
18795
6,182,373
12,061,703

2013-14
4,018,305
1976636
01.46d
57,655
7.271,046
118592
B2h5h
1163445
BESE19
33e
345565
§235/0
3237488
11,347.005

5675411
TAERL0D
2956 560
1015341

218510

1,278,308
546,345
132
2BTE2T
4,393,286
107,563
134935
543,787
3143055
3950650
44454
12,721
1241
5671,594
11,347,005
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e012-13 2011-12 2010-11

4,175,045
4082861
42 184
35,999
5,572,353
g1 831
432775
b67544
RROES?
109357
231078
04 BEE
2H55127
9,783,396

5,594,400
1485000
2356560

832435
¢e(404

1,693,689
1,451 552
13831
£2H308
2,495,306
| 3086
Bale]
500040

| 486,345
240505

4,168,996
9,783,396

4,135,528
2170455
1385072
26,500
5,759,451
93454
44217
733852
213012
61,234
2753z!
117452
2,204,953

9,921,473

5400876
1,350,000
2956,560

871818
242307

1,969,173
1811,139
9907
148,125
2,551,430
148,525
47471
286,075
1351027
Bo3484
3774
13311
4351
4,520,602
9,921,475

£,232035
1118456
1,113,579
20,205
4,752.219
SE7 544
343,048
336,163
34
273873
323817

£ 867,358
7,004,459

5,028,454
1,000,000
2 556,560

803,371
268,553

606,788
513435
3895
55419
1,369,177
110538
E519
26,078
607475
554,541
34035
31528
1,975,965
7,004,459

(Takain 000}
200910
1.147,167

1065088

JH0EY
192,129
943,140

352650
316080

4313
48674
160755
B 78
2,282,436

1,335,998
70000

364,501
21497

B4,659
15805
2458
a4
§81,779
355116
31038
12817
162452
116356

946,438
2,282 436




Annexure IV

Pattern of shareholding

{a) Parent/SubsidianyfAssociate Companios and other related parties (name wise detas) Not applicable,

{b) Directors, Managing Director, Comgany Secretary, Chief Fnancial Officer, Heac of Intemnal Audit and
their spoises & minor children {hame wise details)

Positi Mo, of shares
oSImion Spouse L—;HE?;,-,
Mr. Mohammed |ahangir Alam I Chalrman £3/024,525 Ml NI&
Alhai Md. Khabiruddin Mafa | Managing Director 23,388,750 il NIA
Mr. Md Alamg Katir | Director 14397075 | NI il
Mr. Molla Mahammad Majnu | Diractar | 2127500 Ml il
Mr Md Mizanur Rahaman Malla | Director 12127500 | N P
Mr. M Almas Shimul | Director 7,276,500 il il
Mr. Giokam Mahammad | Independent Director 148 | il A
Prof. Dr. Shaikn Shamsuddin Abmed | Independent Director il ] il
Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS. | Company Secretary I Iyl
Mr. Shahrlar lstiag Halim, FCA | Chief Finandial Officer Al il i
Mr. Md. Shahid Lillah Khan | HeadofimernalAuit | M0 | NI i

{c) Executives (top five salatied emgloyees other than the Directors, Managing Director, Company
Secretary, Chief Financizl Officer, Head of Intemal Sudit):

Mame Mo. of shares
Executives Mil

[df) Shareholders hoiding ten per cent {10%) or more yoting interest in the Company (name wise detals):

Mr. Mohammed [shanglr Alam 23024925
Alha] Md, Khahiruddin Malla P3.388.750

M. |. Cement Factory Ltd, Annual Report 2014-2015




Annexure V

Resume of the appointed/re-appointed Directors

Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Molla, Director

Mr. Md Mizanur Ranman Molla s a spensor Director of M, L Cement Factary Ltd who s actively partcipating in different
entity's Management as a Cirector of Crown Cement Concrete & Buiding Preducts Ltd, Crown Pelymer Bagging Ltd,
Crowmn Mariners Ld, Crown Power Cereraton Ltd, Crown Transporfation & Logistics Ltd, MM, salt Industries Lt and
Malla Satt {Triple Refined) Industras Ltd. Together with his other family members, be has been camying ot the trading
operations from their reputed organization, dealing in Cement and other construction Materials.

Mr. Md. Alams Shimul, Directar

Mr. Md Alams Shimul isa spensor Director of ML Cement Factory Ltd. who alsn holds fmportant positions into 3 nemizer
of ¥mited fiability companies such as Chairman of Indo Steel Re-Rolling Industres Limited, Director of Crown Cement
Concrete & Bulding Products Lie, Crown Folymer Bagging Lid, Crown Mariners Lid, Crown Power Generation Ltd, Crown
Transportation & Logistics Ltd, GPH Ispat Lod., GPH Steels Ltd, GPH Ship Builders Ltd, Chittagong Capital L tdl, GPH Power
Ceneration Ltd and shangl & Others Ltd, Together with his brothers, he has been carnying out the trading of
construction matefials ke Cement, M5 Rod, 0 Sheet et from their different trading houses from Chittagong centre

As a part of sockal acthvities be holds warous prestigious positions in a number of Social Welfare Organizations such as!

«  Zone Chaiperson, Lions District 315-34, Bangladesh
* |oint Secretary, Chittagong Steel Merchants Assoclation

Mr. Golam Mohammad, Independent Director

Mi, Golam Makammad &5 one of the two Indepesdent Drectors of M L Cement Factary Lid, who has a huge working
exgerience in the severa! corporate organizations. He started his caresr in “ndustria Develooment Bank of Pakisthan” in
the year 1967 where he worked for 4 (Four) years, After the Independence in 1971, the °IDE™ was repatriated In
Bangladesh in the name of "Bangladesh Shilpa Bank (B5E) where he worked from 1971 to 19592 in different c2pacities,
like - Development Financing, General Banking, Central Acccunts Department, Project Appralsal Department, Board
Department and Exteral Assistance Department (EAD). Letter an, he was a General Manager in "Ahad Cement Factory
Ld.”

Praof. Dr. Shaikh Shamsuddin Ahmed, Independent Director

Prof. Dr. Shalkh Shamsuddin Ahmed |s one of the two ndependert Directors of M. | Cement Factory Lid He s at present
Professor in the Department of Findece, University of Shaka He was a Sencr Economist and Econamisl in “South Asia
Human Deveicpment™ under “The World Bank™ for the period from 2009 - 2011 and 2007 - 2009 respectively, He
completed his M. Com, from the Finance Department of University of Ohaka in the year 1951 He also achieved his Pn 0
from The Business Scho, Universty of Birmirggham, LK.
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Annexure V|

Report of the Audit Committes to the Board for the year ended 30 June 2015

As per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Notification No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 on Corporate Governance dated 7 August 2012

The Audit Cammittee of the Board was duby constituted by the Board of Directors of the Comgany in 2coordance with the
sgogve noted Notification of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,

The abjectives of the Audt Committes are to assist the Board of Directors in the following ereas:

- Establishing a culture of adequate internal control system to ensure that sufficient risk management system i in
placs to manage the company that financial reports disclosed by the company are refiable for its users.

Ensuring true and fair presentation of the finanoal statements in compliance with Banglediesh Accounting
Standascs / Bangladesh Financial Resorting Standasds and applicable regulatony reguremeants.

- Reviewing the intermal audit procedure ol the compary @ 1o ensure thal the intermal audit can continue heir
sCiivities without ey limisations. To review the efficiency and effectiveness of intemal audit and to review
whether the management s comglying with recommendations made by the internal audit department

Recommending appaintment of external auditor, review audit work and reparts subrmitted by extemal acditors and
to enawre compllance and regulasization of recommendations made by the extemal audtars.

= Reporting to the Boad of Directors on mestakes, fraud and forgeries and other iregularities to ensure comphance
ant regularization

Ensuring compliance with 21 applicable legal and regulatony rules and reguiations and the directives made by the
Board af Cirectors.

In pursuance of s objectives, the Audit Commitiee of the Board held 5 meetings during the year ended 30 june 2015
The Committee reviewed compliante of polcy issuss, reguations and applicsble bws in peneral and reparts submitted by
tree Intemal audt department as well as reports submitted by the external auditors,

Durirg the year under review, the Audt Committee emphasaees on the following:

['o assess the internal audit procedure followad by the company
To take initiative to imroduce a sk based internal audit manual

To review the monthly, quarterly, hatf-veary and year-end finzncial statements
Ta réview the reparts submitted by the internal audit department, the Audit Commitlee netructed and provided

suggestions / gudelines 1o mprove the state of operation.

N
CotnChd
[Golam Mohammad)

Crairman
Aijdit Committes
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Annexure Vil

Managing Director (MD) and Chief Financlal Officer’s (CFO) Statement of Responsibilities
(i linee weith the Bangradesh Securities Exchange Commission [BHEC) notitication dated 07 August 2012

The preparation and presentaticn of financial statements accurately and appropriately 15 t™e responsibility of the
management and aocmiingty we certfy that

1. We have reviewed the financia! siatements for the year ended 20 jure 20015 and based on our best of nowdadge,
peliet and Information avalizble, these statements, to not contan any materially untrue statement o omit any
material fact or do not cantain statements that might be miseading:

2. These statements together present, in all material respects. a true and falr view of company's affairs anc are in
complance with (e existing accounting standards and/or asplicable laws repulations. The frandal slatements
were prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Financizl Reporting Standards (BFRS) and comply with the
Companles Act, 1594, the Securitles and Exchange Rules, 1957 and other applicable laws and regulations;

3. Wenave reviewed drector's report and other reports as nchaded mAnnua Report 207 4-2015 for ensuring acouracy
and appropriateness. Howewer, the director's report and other reports Indude updated informaton that was
availabie il e publication of Anual Regort 2014-2015;

4, To the best of our knowiedge aand befief, no transactions enter Into by the company durng the financial year ang
frauduent. degal or volating business ethics and codes of conduct that is ensured by the established efficient and
effective Intermal control system of company through Intemal auditors ang the audit committes, which requires a
nigh degree of judgments,

5. We atfirm that we have not denled any personal acoess 1o the audit committee of the comgany {in respect of
matters imolving alleged misconduct) and we have provided protection to whistle blowers from unfair termnation
and oibar unfair or prejudcal emplnment Factices; and

6. ‘Wefurther declare that all Board Members and senior managerial personnel have atfirmed compliance with the codes

of conduct for the cument wear,
(Shahriar istiaq Halim, FCA) {Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Malla)
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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Annexure VI

ACNABIN

Chartered Arcountamts
BDVBL Bhaban [Level-13 & 14) Telephore | (B8 02) 8144347 1o 52
1% ¥owran Bazar Commerciy Arcs (RH Xy BI8942H o 29
Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh Facsimiic : (HE (2] 5144353

e-miad | warnzhimitungliners
Wk ; warwacnahincin

Certificate on Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance Guidelines
[l=sued under conditaan #7711 of Corporate Governance Guidedines of BSEC vide
Notification NO. SECTTMRROD/Z2006-158/(7 34/Adminfd4 dated 07 August 2012]

| hawve reviewed the compllance of conditions of the Corporate Lovernance Guldelines by M. 1
Cement Factary Limited (*the Cormpany™] for the year erded 30 June 2015, These conditions
of Corporate Governance were [ssued by Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
(BSEC) vide their notification na, SECICMRRCDAZ006-158/1 34/Admn/dL dated 07 August
2012, The compliance with the said conditions of Corporate Governance and reportng the
status thereof i the responsibiity of the management of the Compary. My responsiaility is to
pravice a certificate about whether the Company s in compliance with the sald conditions of
Lorporate Governance besed on my examinatbon

My examination for the purpose of issuing thes certficate was limited to the procedures
Inchuding Implementation thereaf as adopted by the Company for ensurlg the compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance and carrect reparting of the status of the compliance
on the attached statement on the basis of evidence gathered and representation received, It
is nelther an audit nor 2n expression of opinion on the financial statements of tha Company.

Tothe best of my information and according to the explanations given to me by the Compary,
| herety certity that M | Cement Factory Limited has compPed with the conditions of
Corparate Governance stipulated in the above mentioned BSEC's notification dated 07 August

2012,
M. Moniruzzaman, FCA
Dhaka Partner
16 Mavernber 2015 ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants
ICAB Enrolliment 787
kel e
HAKEE TILLY
INTHRHATIONAL
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Annexure [X

Report on Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance Guideline of BSEC (Condition No. 7)

Status of Compiance with the conditicns imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission's Notification No, SEC/CMRERCLYZ006-1 580 34/Adminfa4 dated 7 August 20172 issued under
section 200 of the Securities 2nd Exchange Ordinance, 1 565 s presented below:

Compllance Status
(randin Title {4"has been
™ propriaie  pemarks
wan) (if any)
Not
| compled complied
i 'Board of Directors {BaD)
1.1 |Board size (number of Board members - mimiren 5 anrJ o

....... Mamu 20)
1.2 lndapmdnnt Ili'srtnrs

1 21y A dzast one filth [h'Ej::f the total rumber of Diractors shall | J
| be Independent Directors

.__14_?!,"11' Independent Director means a Director:

.22 \who elther does rot hold any share In e n:-;:rn::any of hiokds |
less than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid-upl
shares of the company

1.2(1Kh) who = not & sponser of the company and s nat conrected !
with the company’s any sponsor or director or shareholder
|who holds one percent [1%) o more shares of the 1otal J
pad-up shares of the company on the basis of family!
relationship. Hisfher family members aso should not hold
|above menticned shares in the company

1.200c) |who does not have any other relationship, whether|
\pecuniary o otherwise. with twhe compay or fis|

MSInliyf_assntlamd COMpanas
1.200%d) who is not a member, director or officer of any stock| N
!E 1

| 1.20i%e] |who s not a sharehalder, director or officer of any member |
_of stock xchange o an Intermedary of the capital market
{20} who is not a partner or executive of was not a partner or an|
{executive during the oreceding 3 (three) years of thE ~.I'
I:U-I'IIIJEII'I],I"S 5talul-::u],r audit firm
1.2fi¥gl |whao shall not be an independent director in mere than 3 J
[three} listed companies
1.2(I¥R |who has not been comicted by a court of -:nmpetenl
jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment of any kan o a bank or | ~
{a Non-Bank Snanclal insttuticn (NBFH)
T2} | who has ot been corvicted for a criming: offence involving | 4
' moral tmpliu:le
1.2fii} | Independent Drectors) shall be appninted by BoD and
appraved by the snarehokders in the Armual General Meoting!
| [AGM) .
|2} | The post of independent directorls) cannot remain vacant |
for more than S0 {ninety) cays
120 | The Board shal lay own & code of conduct of all Board |
imembers and annua compdance of the code 1o be recorded

.
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.20

The tenuse of oltice of an independent director shall be fer |

heen effectively implemented and monitores

a period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1) &
_lone) term only
13 Qualification of Independent Director (ID)
13l Indegendent Director shal be a knowledgeable individusl
with Integrity who s able to ensure compliance with) g
financial reguatory and corporate lews and can make
~ meaningful contribution to business
13 Independent Drector should be 2 Busness  Leader /
Carperate Leades / Bureaucrat 7 University Teacher with
Economics  or  Busingss  Stadles  or Law
background/Professionats ke Chartered Accountants, Cest|  +f
& Management Accountants, Chartered Secretaries, The
independant director must have at least |2 (twelve) years
_ whcoporate mansgement/profiessional experiences
120 In special cases the above quawﬂcaunns may be reares m
subject to prior approval of Commission
14  The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
{CE0) shall be different individuals. The Charman shall be
elected from among the directors. The Board of Directors |  +f
shall clealy define rﬂi%ﬂ'ﬂﬂ roles and responsibilives of
the Chairman and the C _
1.5  The Director's Report shall include the following additional statements:
151 | Industry outiook and possbie futue developments in the| '
1 E-II] SEErnenf wise mpm:lun wise perm'mance ~..f' -
LA | Reks and concems I
150w} | A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin anc 4 g
Net Profit Margin '
nihe
150} | Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary gain or loss hA,
15{ui) | Basis for related party tansactions - 2 statement of all related
- party transac tians should be disclased In the annual report v
1.50ull} Uniization of nroceeds from public ssues, rghts lssues m
andfor through any other instrument
156l | An explanation if the financial results deterorate after the A,
Company goes far Mane Initial Public Offaring (O]
1.5(k) |If significant variance ccours between Quartery Financia
performance and  Annual Finencal Statements, the IR
__ management shall expiain adout the varance - i
15k} Remureration to directors induding independent directors | +f
1504} The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes n|
Equity
1 50xil} Frupa'buﬂh:.q! account have been malntained +f
1.3l Prdauiatlmnfal:u:fﬂunate accuuntrg ?L'EEESHEE'FIID'IEEEE ~
1. E[xru:l INS/BASAERS/BERS, ac appd:n:aﬂle in Ea*ganesnm biser
followed and adequate dsclosure for any departure A
¥ ED:u‘,l The 53'5'[12111 of Intemal control (s sound In deslgn and has "
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15l | Golng Concern (ability to continue s going concern; )
T 5puil] | Highlight and explain significant ceviztions from the last | 3
| |year'soperating results
T Seviil] ﬁwmtmarﬂflnﬂalﬂataufatreastnrecEI:Ilng Sifive] | 5
years shall be summar(zed
| 1.3{ax] |Reason for non-dedaration of Dividend NFA
15} [The number of Board mestings hekd during the year and | J
attendence by eachdirectar |
1.5l P..::um of shareholding and name wise details {:Ilr.lu:lng aggregate number of
shares):
BT Parent/SubsdlaryfAssociated Comperies and other related |
: pariies &l
1,50y | Directors Chief Executive Officer (CEC), Company Secretary |
(C5), Chief Financia Officer (CFO), Head of Internal fudt)
PHOIA) and thesr spousaes and minar chilgren
| 1.50eeiy | Exeruthes W
1. Sedid) | Sharehciders hokdng ten percent (10%) of more u'ﬂtlng. J
interestin the company
150l |In case of the appeintmentfre-appointment of a director, disclose;
| 1.5bxdiia) | a brief resume of the director v
1.5 [xml:{b]lratu'euf his/her expertise in specific functional areas af
15 {uxi)ic) [rames of compares in which the person alio heid the|
idirectorship and the membershg of committees of the +

tluar-:l

3)
Sl

3(ii]

il

respettive roles, J‘E]:ﬂi‘!:hhiﬁ E| -I:hJUEh

Ihe LFO ane the C5 shall attend the meeting of the Board of |
 Directors

'I'I'E-Aul:lr Enrm.t'r"ee shat be the sub-committee of the EII:ID'-
The Audit Committee shall assist the BoD in ensuring that|
the finandal statements reflect rue and fair view of the |
state of affers of the company and n ensring a good

monitoring system within the business |
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the BaD . The |
duties of the Augit Committee shall be dearly set farth in|

Constitution of the Audit Committes

3
)

R

J
Y
J
J

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 31
The BoD shall appont members of the Audit Commettes who |
shall be directors of the company and shall ncisde at least 1
jone] Independent Director

All members of the al,u:llt committee should be hl‘l.ﬂl'll:lﬂ'_n,'E
fiterate” and at least T {one) member shall have acoounting |
o related foancial management sxpenisncs

R[]

Expiration of the term of sewvice of Audlt Committee
{ members making the number lowes than 3 (threel and fif up |
{ the vacancylies) by the Board not |ater than 1 {one} month;
| from the date of vacancy(ies) {

A
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|'_3 Iv) |Tre Company Secretary shal act as the secretary of the|
| Audit Committes
| 3y |The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not J
| u:unstm:te without at least 1(one) independent director
3.2  Chairman of the Audit Committee
32 | The BoD shall select the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
\who shall be an Indegendent Director
320} .E.E'mﬂn of the audit committee shall remain present in the J
33 ulhluf#udit{m#ml )
330 [H.-'ermtl're fi nan:IaF rﬂpurtng E:mn:ess +
33} | Monitor chaice of BCCOUNTNg ‘nalicies and principles .. 3]
330} | Moniter interna Control Risk Management process ~
33w | Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors +f
33 |Review the anvwal financial statements before subrission 7
|10 the board for approval
A3v)  Review the guarterly ard half yearly francial statements J
~ |before submission to the board for approval |
| 33{i) | Review the adetuacy of internal audit function A
33l | Revlew statement of slgnificant related party ransactions £,
suhmltte::l by the maragement |
T 33(k) |Review Management Lettersiletter of internal Control il
|weakness issued by statutory auditors
33(x) :Elisdn-sme to the Audit Committee  about  the
\uses/zpolications of IPO funds by major catesory (capital
| egpenditure, sales and markeling expenses, working capital,
letcl on @ quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly M
(declaration of financial results. Further, on an annual basis,
shall prepare 2 statement of funds utilized for the purposes

| other than those stated in the prospectus

. 34  Reporting of the Audit Committee

|_341 |ReportingtotheBoardofDirectors

| 3450 |Reporting toHa0 on the actvites of the Audit Committee

!T’f.ull][a} \Recorting 1o 3al on confiicts of interests

| 341k} | Reporting to Bol on ary fraud or iregulsrity or material

defect In the imtermal control system
| 34.1{ic) lRm‘tInEmaansusm{tﬂd Infringement of iaws
34 1|:I|'][d* ermlng mﬂntl 0N ANy oTer matter

3472 'FEE:n'tInE 10 BSEC {if amy material Impaﬂ: an the financial
condition B results of operation, unreasonzbly ignored by
themanagement)

45  |Reporting to the Shareholders of Audit Committes

|activites, which shall be sg'-ed by the Chaiman and, </
disclosed in the Annua HE

4 External/Statutory / ;
ai :I'ﬁlm—ertgagemm in aﬁumlsa or vahation senices or <d
_ [faimesscpinions
4{1'-] |Mon-engagement in daslgmrg and |n'||;|lvema*tatu:|n uf o
|Financial Infarmation System

"R PRPAP R PREN
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il r'-lm -engagement in Book Keeping or other servces related |
| ta the accounting records or finzncial statements

4N} |Non-engagement in Broker-dealer services
4y |Mon-engagement m actuarial sendces
afvi} Mon-engagement n internal audit SErVICES

il ||"-I=:n-ﬂ'tgagenpn’( in any niher "-'.-E*"|I|I:E'§- tha! ihe .ﬁ.l_rl.l’r
Committee detenmines

Aviil}  |No partner or employees of the extemal audit fims shall
| possess any share of the company tduing the tenwreof thelr, &/
IEI'E*iIEI'II'.I'I'EI'IT

&) 1.“-ud|L-"l:Enr‘u:am'1 services on tompliance of turwate J
|gn4.|3fmnte s required under clause (i of condition No. 7

3 liuhﬂdllry Eumpiny
5 |Provisions relating to the composition of the Bl of the|

holding company shal be made apoficable to the WA
corrposition of the BoD of the subsidiary company

S |At least one) Independent Divector on the BoD of the

holding company shal be a director on the BaD of the| KA
subsidiary company

i) |The minutes of the Board rneetlng of the sul:r'slth.aq.I

cormpary shall b2 placed for review at the lollowing Board P
mee'tr:gnf"rhe l'u:lldlng{urnuarw

5[] ]T’!l? minutes of the respective Board Meeting of the hol
| company shall s1ate that they have reviewed the affais o B
the subsdiany company also

S} | The Auit committes of the holding company shall .
revapwy the financial  statements, in partiowar  the A
investmanty mase by the subsidiany comparny

6  |Duties of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFD)

&)  |The CED and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have |
reviewed financial statements for the year and that tothe|,
| st of their knowledge and beflef

B{iya) T'!e:iE statements do not contan EI-'TI],I TnaterLdI'_.,l L_-r'Trueg
statement or omit aw materla fact or contain statements,  «f
that might be misleadng
BiliD) | These statements together present a true and Tait view of|
the company's affaks and are in comphance with existing]
accounting standards and 2pplicadie laws
B} |There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no

|tra':£ar,t||:|na entered into by the company duing the yedr
{which are frauddent, llegal or vioiation of the company's
Lﬂdﬂ of conduct

7 |Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

#l  |Cotaining certificate from a practicing  Professional
AccountantSecretary regarding compliance of conditions N
of Corporate Governance Guidedmes of the BSEC and inchude
mthaﬁm.ralﬁep-n:t

T} |Directors statement in the directors' report whether the J
cormpany has complied with these conditions

e bt
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Prestigious Projects

(Are being built with Crown Cement)

Maghbazar - Mouchak [Comiinad)
Flyover Project. Dhaka

Lt Tower Muttipunpess
Super Market, Comllia
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International Projects

Built with Crown Cement

Mazrul Kalakhetra
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Highlight of the tEvents

EHEN MG CEMERADMY FOR 1™ UNIT YA AETWEER
LORECHIE (G ERRARN Y]
s )

Agraement Signing Ceramony
of Companies 5 Unit with
LOESCHE {Canmany)

anct CMEM (Ching}

China Energy Engin B Morthasst Mo, 2
Electric Po Co. Lid.

BEarnpebaria 175 W Ea]

| Py Sat Frujart
armsn Tk e T

THOTRL B Aighas 107 R

Agreamant Signirg on supoly of
Crowin Cement to Barapukuria
275 Mw Coal Fired Thermad
Powet Plant Proect, Dma)puf
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Highlight ot the tvents

MICFL Factory Visit (Stud, Tour)
s 1 PO gy 8 i, 4 T

i LN ey g, T
5 e

Taking cur Channe: Fartrers

around the waorld
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Independent
Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of
M. I. Cement Factory Limited

e hawve sudited the accompanyng financial stetements of M. L Cement Factory Limited whoh comprise
e statement of financial pesition as at 30 june 2015, statement of profit or loss and other comgrehenshe
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash fiows for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies 2nd other relevant explanatory rotes thenean:

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management & responsble for the preparation and fair presentaton of these financial statements in
accofdance with Bengladesh Financia Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such mternal control as
management detarmines i necessaty Lo enabls the preparation of finandal statemeants that are fies fram
material misstatement whether due to fraud of ermor,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibifity 14 fo exprets an opinin on these financid statenents based an our audit We conducted
our aedit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standands require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audt to obtain reasonablie assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An aadit inuodves pefforming proceduses to obtain audit evidence abou? the amounts and dsclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selectec depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial staterments. whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the enfity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order 10 design audit procedures that are appropriate n the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
contrel. An awdit also induges evaluating the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the
reasorableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as svaluating the owverall
presentation of the financial stetements

Wiz belieyve that the audit svidence we have citaned is sufficent and approprate 8 provide a bass for our
it opinion
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Opinion

i oow asnion, the financal statements pregared in acooedance with the Bangladesh Francial Reporting
Standards {BFRSs), give a true and fair view of the financal position of M. | Cement Factory Limited as at 30
une 2015 and the results of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply
with the Companies Act 159494, the Securities and Exchenge Rules 1987 and other applicabis laws and
regulations

We alsoreport that;

a) we have cbtaned all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowiedge and befief
were necessary for the purpose of cur audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our epinion, proper books of account as required by [aw have been kept by the Company <o far as
it gppeaned from our examination of those books;

c) the statement of financial position and statement profit or loss and other comprehensive income
alang with the annexed notes | 1o 44 dealt with by the report are In agreement with the books of
account; and

di the expenditure incumed and payments made were for the purposes of the Company's business,

Wl .?
W, ml.}':-li-m-w;ﬂ:

Dhisea Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.

£7 October 2015 Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2015
30.06.2015 30.06.2014
ASSETS Notes Taka Taka
Mon-current assets 4,210,152,070 4,018,304,669
Property, plant and equipmeant 4 4,204,551 83/ 4926836388
vapital work In progress 5 0,600,233 91468261
Inwestmeant in assaciate companies G 96,955,744 57,655,003
Current assets 7.754,595,168 1.271.045,790
Imestmant in shares ) 126,227.071 1719.9%2 366
Inientores i 722,240,042 B26,525.720
Trade recejvables | 1.1E9678,55d 1,169 445807
Current account with sister concemns 10 813,117,394 BEOE1ATES
dther resehmables 11 53,961,432 57231527
Aovances, deposits 2nd prepayments 12 367 BS0046 325,964,750
Aivanos income tax =] 399,103,450 B3.578.904
Casn and cash equlvalents 14 3502416272 32379687850
TOTAL ASSETS _J2.061,702.982 11,347,005 462
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ equity 5.879,329,648 5,675,411,007
Share capital 15 1,485 000,000 1,485 000000
Share premium 16 £.955,560,000 £.956,560.000
fetaned samings 1221 082 558 1015341470
Fevaluation reserve 215687080 218209536
LIABILITIES
MNon current liabilities 838,392,425 1.278,308.375
Long term borowing mel off current maturity 17 425532519 Beh, 249, 36
Liabikties for gratuity 18 25,585,628 24132449
Detarred ta abilty J=1nk 351 470,278 7 HE539
Current liabilities and provision 5,343,980,909 4,393,286,081
Trade payables 20 1256,122.045 107 583409
ather peyadies el 150,168855 134984953
Current portion of long term borrowings e 558292249 Se3 FES 000
Short tenm koan 23 4142616763 3143054954
Pronision for tax abilites 24 292 395421 3095049,741
Liabilties for WPPF 25 42811780 44453769
Payatde to PO applicants 12840221 E‘ 20975
Liniclzimed dhadend 18,794,565 11,241,219
TOTAL LIABILITIES B 182,373,334 5.671,594,455
TOTAL EQLITY AND LIABILITIES 1 E.I:I'E'I ?HE.!HE 1 'I 34]" l:II:IS AG2 P
MNet Asset Value per share 6 39.59 BE.EE
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an infegral part of these financlal statements.
s 7 A
) ’; "".'.“-"' -\.:‘_- ui"fﬂ 'IT:':_I--:-_-'
Md. Jahangir Alam Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla ir Kabir Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Chairman Managing Director i Company Seoretary
Dhatka
57 Cctober 2015 A5 |.|u|:| our report of same date.
« +u.'$m--—-u-v|ﬁ§_
Hoda Vasi mm'dhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 2014-2015



Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2015

 2014-2015 ~ 2013-2014
s Taka Taka

Hevanue £h B£0d 240 98L SEE0EEART
Cost of sales 27 (6H50,545,793) 6.731.727411)
Gross profit 1.413,691,702 1,258.915.200
Cmer operating income 24 23460000 23430000
Adminisratve expenses 29 (157,173.325) [114.206,125)
Sellirg and distrisution expenses E | [295,305.086) (231,034,362
Operating profit 984,673,291 937,104,713
Mon-cpersting incomsa 31 BGA0AES 40979579
Finznoal income f (expenses) 32 (121557113 (B6.211,045)
ahare of profit from assocates 34 E _39.330,?41 _ 31.55&322_
Prafit before WPPF & income tax 899,047,384 533,529,569
Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF) (42.811,780) [44.453,789)
Profit before income tax 856,235,604 BB89.075,780
Income fax expensss . : .
Current tax i3 (143,:73,223) {154.544,848)
Deferred tax 33 (64211387 __ (60.141468)

(207.384,610) {214,686,316)
Net profit after tax for the year 648,850,994 674,389,465
Eamnings per share 35 437 4.54

The anmexed notes 1 1o 44 farm an infegral part af fhese financly starements.

:-" . Ll ,‘I'-\.l- ran 5
%&Sﬁ a4 ﬁ Bie

Md, Jahangir Alam  Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla  Md, Alamgir Kabir Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Charrman Managing Director Cirettor Company Secretary
Dhaka .
37 ctobes 2015 fis Iﬁf L.ulrlrr-.'|.1I|:|| -.Tr same .ddlE
RIA] 1 —i
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2014-2015 2013-2014
Taka Taka
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash recetad from customers B240774974 74754129682
Cash recehed from other opérating income 19283345 366089
Cash recetved from non cperating Income 13484139 21853494
Cash recetved from term depcst and others Z7BB59 885 39477012
Cash paid o supHiers & employses [BEE9.751,377 (6,702,526,470)
Cash paid for operating expensss (425,524,535 (354,547,236
Incorme tax pai [320,953,098) (326,090,759
Met cash fiows from operating activities 1.1 EId,i',?E_.EEEI 51_EI_,.B:B=I:I.EIEI!
Cash flows from Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipments (575,148074) (125,387 B59)
Praceads from sale of property, plant and equipments 1,000,000 .
Increasel [decrease] of payment for capital work in progress g25898014 (1,255 645
Inwesiment in shares {13088,375) (9.076,102)
Pald to associate companiies 123,298 G0E) (200, 165822
Met cash used in investing activities (525.637.042) (339,890,532)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receint of short term boan CA9S61, 764 1,656,704, 767
Repayment of long term loan [504,37% 621) [#61,455,108)
Pald against financla experse [400,970,248) (393,693,178
Faid to IFD applicants - (145,080
Increase of =0 applicants fund due to forelgn exchange 119246
foctuaton
Dividend paid __[457.345655) [592.345.168]
Net cash flows from financing activities (344,207,508) 208,871,232
Met increase in cash and cash aguivalents 264,428,382 382,861,039
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,237,987 850 £A855,1 26451
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (note: 14) ~3,502416,272 3,237,987,890
Met operating cash inflows per share 7.64 3.46
AN a. . .
'4(%\?? ____.-'"._.-'"""'"-"J. Xﬁ"—dh I';;.L'.' Jru
Md. Jahangir Alam Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla Md. Rlamgir Kabir Md. Mozharul 1slam, FCS
Charman Managing Dlrectar Divadtor Company Secretany
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 jJune 2015

1.00 Incorporation and legal status

M. |. Cerment Factany Limited (hereinafter referred to as *the Company”® or “MICFL") was incorporatec on 31 December
1834 under the Companies Aot T994 &5 a Public Limited Company in Bzngladesh The Company subsequently wens
fior Initial Public Offermg of shares In [anuary 201 1 which was fully subscribed ang ssued The Company was lIsted
with Chittagong Stock Exchiange Limited (CSE) on 5 May 201 1 and Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) on 18 May
201l

The registered of fice of the Company is situated at West Mukterpur, Munshigan] and the corporate office ks situated
at House #07 & 0F Road # 95, Bock # CENAL North Avenee, Gushan-2, Dhaka-1212

The Company has four associate companies namey Crown Powss Generation Ltd. {CPGL), Crown Masrers Lid (CML)
Crown Cemenst Concrete and Bullding Products Lid, (COCRBBRL) and Crown Transportation & Logistics Ltd, [CTRLL)

.00 Nature of activitles

e principal activities of the Company are manulaclorng and marketng of Ordinery Partland Cement {0FC) and
Partdand Comgesite Cement (PCC). The Company has been marketing its products with the brand rame “Crown
Cement”. in addition to sale of Compary's products in the local market, the Company also expartsit’s products tolndia:
The plant of the Company is equipped with woedd famous O-hepa Separatar

3.00 Summary of significant accounting and valuation policies

The accounting polickes applied inthe pregaration of the fimanclal statements are set out below!, These polces have
been applied consistertly 1o all the years presented. The specific accounting policies selected and appled by the
Company's management for significant transactions and events that hawve & materal effect in preparaton and
presertation of financial statements are In compliance with the framework of Bangladesh Fnancial Reporting
Standarts (BFRSs)

3.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(a) Accoumting standards
Tre finandal statements of the Compary have been prepared In accordance with Bangladesh Fnanclal Reporting

Standards (HFRSs) and the requirements of Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Companies Act 1998 ard other
applicable laws and reguations

(b] Accounmting conventhon
I firancial statements are presared under the historical cost modal excent land & fand develspment and factory

burldings which have been measured under revalustion mosel, The Company classifisd the expenses using the
function of expenses method as per 385- 1 {Presentation of financial statements)h

(c) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of linarcal statements, comphying BFRSs, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. |t
g0 requires management o exercise thelr judgment in ascertalning assumption in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies and reported amount of assets, llabilthes, Income and experses. Such estimates are
prepares on the sssumption of going concem and are established based on aEmently available information, Changes
In facts and Crosmstances may resudt in revised estimates and actua! resuts could differ from the estimates.

Sigrificant estimates ane made by management In preparation of the financial statements indlute assumplions used
for depreciation, allowande for receivahles, deferred taxes and provisians for employses benefits,

{d) Re-arrangement of figures
Praviois year figures have been re-arranged whenever necessany to conform to the cument year's presentation
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3.2 Forelgn currency translationftransaction

Fareian currency transactions are reconged at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date in
accordance with BAS-21 [The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates) and the resultant gaindoss (£ recognised
in the financia’ statements. Monetary assets and abifities denominated in foreign curencies are translated at the
rates prevaiing on the reporting date. Exchange: differences at the statement of fingndal position date are
recognized in the statemant of profit or loss and other comprebensive intome,

3.3 Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)

Tanglbke fixed assets are accounted for acoording to BAS-16 (Property, plent and equipment) either at histonical cost
of at revaluation less accumulated depreciation and the capital work-in-progress < stated at cost. Histonical cost
inchudes expenditure that is directiy attributable to the acquisiton of the items

sutseouent costs are included in the assets’ carmyeng amount or recognized as a seperate asset, a5 appropriate, only
wihen It & prosable that future sconamic benefits assaciated with the itern will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliatly, Repair and mantenance costs are charged to the stetement of profit or Ioss and
other comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incured,

Depreciaton on assets ather than land is calculated using the redudng balance method or stradght line method over
ther estimated usetul fues at the following rates

Category of PPRE Rate (%) Depreciation Method
Mether vesse| 5 Stragght line
Auildrgs = Reducing balance
Plant and machinery 10 Reducing balance
Fumiture 10 Reducing balance
Deroration 21 Straiht line
Eouipment 21 Straight line
Comoiters 3333 Stratght line
Transport and vehices 10-15 Reducing balance
Other assets . 10-20 Reducing balance

Depraciation method, uselu bves and residual values are reviewsd at each reporting date.
In respect of addition to fixed =ssets, deprecation is dharged from the month of addition while no depraciation i
charged i the month of disposal,

In accordarce with the provision of BAS-36 (Impairment of assets) no Imparment irdication has been obsened T
repariing date.

B8 no. of transport vehicesivessals owned by the Company are being operated by Crown Transportation and
Logistics Limited. Mo related income and expenses except depreciation has been recognized in the financial
statements.

34 Inventories

Imventories are valued in accordance with BAS-2 [lwentores) at the lower of cost and ret reslizable value, The cost
of iveniories is based an weighted average method The cost of finlshed goods comprises raw materlals, packing
rraterials, direct labow, other direct and refated production overhaads (bassd on normral capacity} and production
related depreciation.

3.5 Trade recefvables, current account with sister concerns and ather receivables

Traoe recevables are recognised and camed at ariginal iInvolced amount, Recelvables are stated at net off provision
for daubtful delits Provision i< made in these accompanyims Tinancial statements comphyirg the Company's policy and
receivables-are written off when the debis became finaly imecoverable, Further, management has assessed the
chieclive evidence regardng fepayment cap2eity of its sislef cofcems and impairinent provision, il any, is Fade in
these accompanying financial statements complyng the Company's polcy.
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36

.7

Cash and cash eguivalents

It inchudes. cash in hand and bank deposits those ase avallabse for use by the Company having insignificant nisk of
changes in value of these cument assets

Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company coerates an equal contributony provicent fund for its permanent empiovees, provision for which s being
made monthhy as pes the rules, The fund is recognized by the National Board of Revenue (NBR) and ks administesed by
a Board of Trosteas, This is a Tunded scheme and separate accounis are mantained for this Tund,

(b} Defined benefits plan

(c}

This represents an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent emgloyess One latest basic salary is allocated 1o
employees for the year(s) of service rencered who have not completed ten wears while one and a half latest basic
salzry is allncated in sane manner who hive completed fen years of service in the Compamy,

Mo actuarial valuation was done for Babillty on account of gramsty. Had any actuari valuation been carmied out, the
difference between current provision and actuarna valuation would hawve been noming 2s internally assessed oy the

Man@ement
Group insurance benefit

The parmanent employees of the Company are covered under 2 group insurance scheme and insurance premium is
beirng charged tostalernent of poolil o loss and otber comprehensie income,

(d} Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

The Company recognizes & provision and expenses for Workers' Profit Particpation @ 5% of net profit &s per relevant
Art,

(2} Leave encashment benefit

a8

3.9

310

The pesmanent emaloyvees of the Company are entitled o encash eamed leave In pursuant to the eave encashment
policy consistently applies end approved by the Board, The Company caloulates benefit for leave encashment on g
calerdar wear hasks,

Trade and other payables

Liabiities are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and services received by the
Comparny,

Provisions

Provisions are recogrized In accordance with BAS-37 {Provisions, contingent liabdities and contingent assets) The
Compary recognises-a provision when there s 2 present obigation, leeal or constructive, a5 aresult of past events and
it is-probable that an outfiow of resources emibodying economic benefits will be required ta setile the obligation and
arefiable estimate of the amount of the chligation can be made,

Revenue recognition

[a} The Compary recopnizes sales when products are dispatched and risks and rewards afe also transiered to the buyers;
[b} Interest Income on bank deposits i recognized once cedited o the Company accounts maintamed with the

(c)
(d)
(e}

resnectwe hanks,

income from mother vessel, when it Is being chertered out, is recognized on the basis of contractuzl agreement
between the company nd Alunited Maritime [Put) Lid.

Deviders? income from: investment in shanes (s recogmizes when the shareholser's right 1o receive payment is
established,

Other Income |5 recognized on sooral besis.

3.11 Advertising and promotional expenses

Al costs associated with advertisrg and promational sctivities are charged out 'n the year of oooumencs,
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3.12 Allocation of directors’ remuneration
Oirectors’ rermumeration i2 diocated to different departmeants like administration, factory & sefing and distrioution
on the bases of the functions performed by tham for the Comgany

3.13 Allocation of depreciation

Depreciation is allocated to factory, administrative and ssfling & distributson overheads on the basis of utiization of
aesets Dy the Tuncton of 1he Company,

3.14 Income tax
(a) Currenttax
Prowision is made a1 the ruling rate of tax as per the Finance Aot 2015,
(b} Deferred tax

Deferred fax s recognized using the balance sheet method, Defered tax arises due fo temporary difference,
geductible or texabie, for the events or trensaction recognized in the statement of profit or loss &l other
comprehensive income. A temporary difference is the difference batween the tax baze of an 2zt or liablity and its
tamying amoutiteported amount inthe statement of fimancial position. Deterred tax assets of lability & the amount
of income tax recoverable or payable o future period(s) recogrized in the cument period. The defened tax
lizbility/expense does not create o egal liabilityf recovesability to and Tram the income tax authority.

3.15 Investment in associate companbes

Associate companies are those where the Company has direct mwestment and signédficant influence ower thelr
financial and operating pofcy declsions but has no control or joint control aver those palicies.

Aesociste companies use similar accounting poices & imvestment in such e accounted for following the equity
mathad and recognised i the statemant of financial position at cost plus propostionate share of post acquisition
prafit o ioss wherever applicatie. Proportionate share of kosses in associate companses are recagnised 1o The extent
that it does not excesd the investment at cost. Appropriate adjustments have been made for the effects of
signifacant trarsactions or events of the assocatels] where date of financizl statement preparation s cifferent, more
than three months Where the reporting date of associate and parent |5 different by no more than three maonths,
gdeviation has been considered comphying BAS- 28 (Investments in associates and [oint ventumes),

3.16 Investment in shares

Imyestment inshares which dre actively traded on a guoted market are designated at lar valee [market price) through
prafit o loss. Cains or ksses arising from a changes in the l2ir value of such financial assels are recognized in the
statement of prolit of kss and othe comprehansive moome aceordingly.

3,17 Cash flows statement

I-ash flows statement is prepared principally in sccordance with: BAS-7 [Cash fiows-statement) and the cash fiows
from operating activities have feen presented under direct method,

3.18 Segment information

It Company is primasily engaged in the manufacturing and selimg of similar type of products; this forms the focus of
the Company'sinternal reporting system. The Compary's busiress is not organized in different products/geograghical
components, Hence, segrentation within 2 wige portfoio of products'geographical location is not a part of the
regular intermally reported francial informaton to the operating decision makers. Therefore it = not posshble to
segment the Company’s resulis by productsdgeographic fiocation which might Inveive a high degree of estimation,

3,19 Date of authorization
Tre Boang of Directors has authorlsed the fimanclal statements on 27 Octaber 2015 for publication,

3.20 General

IMee francial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taga which is functionad and preseniation cwrency of the
Company. Faaures have been roundsd off to the nearest Taka,
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014
4.00 Property, plant and equipment L Taks
A. Cost
Cpening balance CI1B1.866.055 5050503601
Add : Additon during the yeas 576,790,118 131.365454
5.758656,203 5181869255
Less | Disposal during the year 45449 3R4 3.200
Total (A) ~ 5,754,106,839 - 5,181,866,055
B. Accumulated depreciation
Cpening balance 1.255029665 967542 8596
Add : Crarged during the year 254026506  2B73B7A10
_1.553432,321 _1,255,030,306
Less | Adustmant for disposal during the year B 2ATIA19 B4l
Total {B) 1.550,555,002 1.255,029,666
C. Carrying amount (A-8) ~ 4,203,551.837 ~ 3.926,836,388
A-separate schedule of property, plant and equipment is given in annexure- A,
5.00 Capital work in progress
Machineries ang equipments 2448760 1418785
Sube-statlon {132/33 KV line-DPDC) : £1.867.700
Constrnection of silka 35674491 -
ety constrection g 133558
Packer 757518
Construction of slag shed 423,095 271,125
Dthers 160,867 ela.0a]
6,600,233 91,468,281
6.00 Investment in associate company [note 3.15)
Crown Power Generation Limited (CROL] -
Add : Share of profitf floss) from Investment
{apdet investrient in CPGL
Crown Mariners Limited {CML} 57/655,003 35984581
Add - Share of profit from Investment 39,300,741 21656322
[b)Met investment in CML 065,355,744 57555003
Cronein Cement Concrete and Bulling Products Cmeted {00CBPL)
Less ; Share of profity {loss) foom nvestnent
{cItet investment in CCCBPL
Crewn Transportation & Logstics Limited {CTLL)
Ardd ; Share of profitf (foss) from investmeant
{diet investment in CTLL
Net investment in associate companies (a+b+c+d) 96,955,744 57,655,003
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Share of Insses of in associate companies are recognised in the fimancial statements to the extent T does not exceed The

carmying amount of ‘investment in asscoates,

BT Summarized key finanoal information of the associate companies are presented below i accordznce with BAS-28

(Inestment im associates)
Crown Crown Crown I:lmlnt Crown Power
Mariners Transportation | Concrete and Bullding Generation
Parthculars Limited & Logistics Limited  Products Limited  Limited
(ML) (CTRLL) (CCCREBPL  (CPGL)
~ Financial statements (un-auditedjasof | 30042015 = 31.032015 31032015 30062015
% of MICFL stake 20 e 20 50
netial imvestment S00,000 SOG000 | 500000 230,000
Total assets 1020653229 340507573 | 526772417 149717916
Total liail ties 422348301 395161497 | 571913830 147440740
Revenue 491968142 | 414350568 | 813365533 | 47589354
~ Profitor {ioss) 195,503,704 19,702 B78 (45516,788) 23887440 |
~ Accumulated profitd (loss) | 4B0B4S92B | (57.153923) [ (134057137 | (1722823) |
Linrecognized Iosses of associate companies (11,930.785) 2731 T,a‘-.E‘.-‘J (2861414
30.06.2015 30.06.2014 |
Taka Taka
7.00 Investment in shanes
Opening balance 119592 366 91830612
Add : Addition during the year 275263490 2BEITB1T7
Less : Disposal during the year ~ IBD4ZETY ~ IE75LI00
131,476,477 99,957,129
A : Unrealised gain {oss) from fair valuation ~ [5243406) 20035237
126,227,071 119,992,366
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Break- up of investment in shares:

I Mame of shares Oty | Cost (in Taka) Market value (in Taka)
Bank Asia Lid fHAS5 476075 434953
Beximoa Pharma Ltd 15,344 BT IR 953352
Delta Life Insurance Lid, 4437 11351711 42 247
Jamuna Ol ColLtd. 148830 Z8.778310 2532555978
Meghna Petrolium Ltd, 0962 01558352 4,087,590
Mational Bank Ltd 333,147 3630389 3784551
Cre Bank Ltd. TE143 3063910 10337773
Prime Bank Ltd 268,735 B34.709 462533
Fupaii Bank Ltd 339,132 258,694 1,655,284
“ncial Isiami Bank Lid., =T | 55,179 Fr3451
South East Bank Lid 67920 3273007 &.B04. 264
Square Pharma Ltd. 147173 3537BE5D JESHR A
Titas Gas Ltd 53239 4,892470 3726730
Easterns Bank Ltd, 600,261 172817699 15,606,786
Central FHL | D0,000 3512250 70000
OESC 14000 C4E 4aB G40 200
IFHC Bank Ltd. 10,200 Z1EEI0 1496850
Erwoytex Ltd 51 23490 2423
Power grid Lid, HASD 354781 334 755
Littara Bank |1, 15535 7805 FaBzF7z
5P Finance Ltd 318 3859 3923
Lanka Bangla Finance L1d 1.155 44635 32,109
B5REM Steel Ltd. 1,000 a3.600 73500
Meghna Lite Insurance Lig, 1,490 150710 101,767
Phoenix insurance L 4,133 138173 q5A77
Pecples Insurance Ltd. 2700 56927 41850
Asia Pacific insurance Lid, 13,264 258,631 213550
The City Bank Limited 3075 o077 L2Ra0
Saihermeot Lud 4500 184,736 172810
Malek Spinning L1d £753 5ol LERAT
Linited Firance Ltd, HAaB5 187,592 170601
Tallu Spinning Ltd, 12133 203,439 178355
Littara Finance Lid, £a2g 166,114 145,141
Republic surance Ld 2.22h 35291 32500
Phoenix Finance and nvestment L, 1873 In.E3EB IR0F9
Shaihamtex Lid 5,355 131446 114587
Argon Denims Ltd, 10857 350502 272511
First Lease Finamoe and Imvestment 8145 124543 100,784
Rupali Irswrance Lid, 5258 103,673 85,705
Prime Insurance Lid, £830 41458 404869
Prirma istami life Insurence Lid 464 21,680 ehR2d
Mercantite Bank Ltd 10,592 135310 108038
United Commencial Rark Ltd R T GE16E9 49472
Bangzadesh Industrial Finance Comgany Ltd 3559 46,00 41,319
famuna Bank Lid. 7.red 2REFT 0346
[=lami Bank Ltd 1,333 3ngls 2828
Uhaea Hark Ltd. 1,349 21827 23473
Puball Bank Ltd. 22 4,723 4144
Exim Bank L1d 4,140 ERird 37260

| Surmmit Purbachol Power Company Licl 121 5,114 _E546 |

131,476,477 126,227,071 |

Inwastment in shares has been messured at fail vabe of the respectve shares based on last trading prices as of 30 June
2015 as per the reguirement of BFRS-3 [Financial instnuments
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| 30.06.2015 30.06.2014

Taka Taka
B.00  Inventories '
Closing stock - Quantity
Clirker MT F1.51R18 370113674 128.173324
Cypsum MT £B75.50 75ES044 74571483
Slag MT 417599 11593997 113978993
Fhy ash MT 1048650 21,745,155 20358571
Lime stone MT 312090 B181.919 7. 748967
Cement grinding akd MT B4355 49915041 1870818
Fifished carmeant gl (R 21EB5 2263
Baps PCS B6,089 1533582 BO27A16
Stores & spare parts 165,852,181 141,099,658
634,522,758 426,712.413
[nentory in transit
Clinker 87.718,184 187,158,862
Cypsum . HE49930
Fhy ash - 35964516
87,718,184 199,813,307
‘."EE.__..E‘-I-E_I!.H#E EEE_I,.S-E'__%..?EIJ
900 Trade receivables
Corporate 445020114 3395201 14
Dealers 33500235/ S13m18.124
Distributacs [BFa37al? 157,364,137
Diter custlomers £32898,715 162558052
Transpart bill EI,E'IE'?'IE EIE'I.E 716
1.1582,911.814 1,182,873 -EI
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt 3233268 13427336
Trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debt 1,169,678,553 1.169,445,807
Ageing of the above recelvables |5 glven babow: -
| upto T month = 1-3months | 3-Gmonths  above 6 months | Tatal
| Corparate 197440837 | 139238457 | 95110375 76230444 | 448020114
Deders 178472508 | E0S0I246 | NG | 4218991 | 335002357
Diswbutos | 82670745 | 1604365 | 1708775 | 81394027 | 167377912
| ﬂthq'l:uslu-rner'i- T-"::,.EESMU | 106105540 | 49883085 1,284,300 | 232858715
| Transport bl : - : 9612716 | 9612716

i AT4200500 | 327445868 | BOG0ISAS | 210650478 |1,192811814

Trade recelvable outstanding for more than one year (out of above & months ageing category] = amounting 1o
Te 18770 millin which management considered a5 poodirecoverahle
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014

Taka Taka

10,00 Current account with sister concenns
Crown Power Generation Limited 138749726 176,116,128
Crown Polymer Bagging Limited 262841352 198,079,087
Crown Cement Cancrete ard Bulldng Products Limited 153080716 | 35852570
Crown Transportation & Legistic Limited 2016432 s s
Crown Cement Trading Comgany 16295913 15851 788
Cronen Marimers Limited - HE9TE.776
933,995,179 889,818,785
Less: Impaiment allowance (F0877,785) =

Cumrznt aocount with sister concemns net off impament afowanoe

Particulars Purpose

_ _ Full Power penerated i supalied to M1, Cemet Factory Limited at less than
Cromm Power Generation Lmited tm{mmﬁﬁuﬂmkﬂmﬂ: !

Al baes as produced = suppiiad to ML Cemeant Factory Limited at less than

Crowen Polyrmer Bagging Limited ;

ey E comoetltive market price.
Crowin Cement Concrete and This company wen? Ing commerclal production on 15 May 2013 and Is
Bulldrg Products Limited Invohed in ready mix cement business using exclusively Crown Cement
Crowm Transportation & Logistc | Crowm Transportation & Logistics Limited is providing loglstics service fior
Limited carryig finished product 1o customer a1 a lower price than the market satie
Crown Cement Trading Company A partnership firm of directors, occasionally invoheed in cement trading

husiness

Cromen Mariners Limited is providing logistics  service for carmying raw
matenals from Chittageng port to factory ghat at less than competitive
Mmarket paios,

Crowm ¥ariners Limited

These represent temporary unsecured and interest-freg lnans 1o assaciate entites. The terms and conditlons
with respect toorepayments are not fixed However, the management anticipates that such lnans will he realised
anytime but rot lzter than next 3 {three) yvears fromthe reporting date,

11.00  Other receivables
Molla Sait Triple Refinery Limited 122,790 132740
Irterest income receivable on FOR 449,751,687 571498737
Receivabie fram bank L119M6E -
Receivabila from Alunited Maritime Busiress [Pet) Lid A a56540
ke 1 L 1AL
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12.00

12.0

13.00
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30062015 = 30.06.2014 |

Advances, deposits and prepayments L] L
[a) Advances
Advance 1o parties! contractons (nate; 12/01) 167, 106400 177,141,756
Avance (o employee against works 17516482 11662082
Advance o employes agaimst salary [,1038%4 OB
Advancs agains| rant 6,592 004 8712004
VAT current account G0.405 482 5131670
Advance to others BA41389 35209
Advance 2galnst raw maternials purchese 02 B73257 12483109
327,038,828 273,552,864
(b) Depasits
Securlty depos't and other deposit 20057650 16,797 708
Margin for bank guarantee JBI5RI3 J49BL2E
LAC margin deposit 77858549 47 701,153
31,683,203 70.997.488
() Pre-payments
Insuranoe pramium 1,805,183 1414438
ESTI Expense 4013560
BIWTA experse 3,088,390
B Expense F10482
Cas hill 2400
9,128,015 1414438
367,850,046 345,964,790

Advance to partiesfcontractors Includes an amount of T 50453000 against land purchase that remalns
uncharged during the year{sh presented & the necessary formaiities have not yet been completed till the
reporting date.

Advance income tax

Cpening beance 23578504 £02 BRE 145

Add : Pard during the year 320,853,098 325,050,755
1.144,932,003 BZ23.978,904

Less! Adiustment

Assessment years: :

e012-2013 121,820,733

2013-2014 124007810 || -

245828543 | =
899,103,460 823,976,904

Advance income tax paid during tHhe year represents tax deducted at source by respective partes and banks on
purchase af raw materials, bills lor cement supply, expart sales asd inferast fwome,




30.06.2015 30.06.2014

1400  Cash and cash equivalents (note: 3.6) Taka Taka
Cash in hand
Cash im hang- Head office 14384902 1,054,186
Lash im hand- Factory 71,805 321,726
1,511,707 1.375912
Cash at banks o
One Bank Limited £0.268 35926
South East Bank Limited 2.296,155 EAG2
Mercantile Bank Limited 3479873 731,409
|armuna Bank Limited 1,345,731 1,595E79
Siabe Hark of lxia 20900962 15520027
The City Bank Limiteg 551517 1,360,731
Mational Bank Limited 1355341 5,092,394
[Cuiteh Bangla Bank Limized 2510581 LE40FY
Prime Bank Limited 26622527 4718669
United Commercial Bank Limited 10630914 22745654
Mutual Trust Bank Limited 2495028 3 498 D56
Puball Bank Limiteg E998635 5,194,974
Jamatz Bank Limited 1209736 3E15BHE
Cinaka Bank Limized 7.126053 31635201
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 3762852 15,396,044
Listara Bank Limited 7 806 GBoE
Brac Bank limited 15781537 | 5,087 550
Islzmi Bank Bangladesh Limited B70.A47 3, 766851
Standard Chartered Bank B354 2010 3023
IFIC Bank Limited 1012978 354,480
Mational Credit and Commerce Bank Limited 993920 34475
Dine Bank Limited- Dividend 2ocount 5143112 4575 0E8
Cutch Bangla Bank Limited- Cividend account 5391506 5233388
Linited Commerrial Bank Limited- Dividend acoount 10352737 ¢.351,850
132084575 115376249
Term deposits 3366819550 3121235729

3502416272 3.237.987,890

Term deposits Include an amount of Taka 7 B58469,108.00 a5 lien agarst term loan taker from The
Hongkong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited for term logn and Taks 3.57,07.815.00 held under lien
with Ore Bank Lid as security against bank guarantee in faveur of Chittapong Custom House
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30,06.2015 30.06.2014
Taka Taka
15.00 Share capital

Authorised Capital

200000000 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 16 each 3,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

lssued, Susscribed & Paid-up Capital

1485000000 Ordinary Shares of Tk 10 each fully paid-up and share holding position i as under:

SLF Mame Mo Shares Holdng %
I Md. [ahangir Alam 23024925 | 5.50% ¢30.245230 £30,245250
2 Alal Mdghatiruddin Mol 23.388.750 15.75% 233887500 207,900,000
3 Md Alamgir Eabr 143597075 A70% 143970750 143970,750
4 Mrs. Al-Haj Rokeya Bagum 0.00% 103950,000
B Moila Mohammad Mazny 12127500 a17% 121,275,000 1034850,000
=] Md Mizanur Rzhmean 12127500 217% 121275000 103,350,000
/ Md Almas Shimul 7276500 490% 72,165,000 72765000
B Alnal Md, Abdur Rouf 2.558,750 1.75% 25987500 25987500
g M Ashrafuzzaman 25495 750 | 755 25587500 5987500
1d M Aldul Ahad 2079000 | 45 S A0, 000 20,750,000
11 Ganesal Pualic 48881250 3292% 48881 2500 445,500,000

148,500.000 100%  1.485.000,000 1,485,000,000

The Compeny imcregsed its ped-up share capital from 1,350 million to 1485 million by ssuing 13500000
ordinary shares as bonus share of Taka | 0each to the shareholders as dedared at 18th Annual Ceneral Meeting
hedd on 23 December 2012

One ol the directors of the Company, Mis ALHaj Roxeya Beaum, has ecently axpirad and Ber shares are distrib-
Uted among Tre succeEssors as per succession rertificate which are 25 follows:

51 % Name Mo, Shares m;‘n‘ :';""Fﬁ';‘;
1 Mrs Al-Haj Rokeya Begum (10,395,000) ; 103950000
2 | AhaMd Khabirsddin Molla £598,750 25,587,500
1| Mola Morammad Maznw 1732500 17.325,000
2 M Mizanur Rahman 1.732.500 1¢.325000
5 IrrEI'IEral Fublic 4331250 43,312,500 . -
: 103,950,000 = 103,950,000
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16.00

17.00

Shareholding range

. Liess than 499 shares
500 to 5,000 shares
5,007 (o 10,000 shares
10007 1o 20000 5hares
20007 1o 30000 shares
0007 1o 40000 shares
200000 1o 50000 shares
50001 to 100,000 shares
100000 to 1,000,000 shares
Cer 1,000,000 shares
Total

Share premium

30.06.2015 30.06.2014
Taka Taka
Ciolders | Moldngs | id e | Holdings
30062015 30062015 | 30.06.2014  30.06.2014
53,081 6661678 B4864 | 8113588 |
3,164 £ 367,498 4176 | 5810353 |
2O 1456324 275 1.937 926
9h 1,353,390 126 1,767,700 .
259 715,842 45 1,747.370 |
25 B57,035 25 670,108 |
15 704,073 6 735530 |
3) 2232675 || 2EBAT0D |
52 16637203 3 42799
13 | 113514282 | 14| 117028811
56714 | 148500000 | 69,618 148500000

Tris represants share premium of Taka 3,048 mifion reised ty [ssuing 30 million of ordrary shares @ Tk, 101 .60 per
share theeugh PO during The year 2010-2011, The break-up of the balance of share premium |5 glven below:

Share premium realised during the year 2010-2011
Less: Income tax paid on share premium

Balance as on june 30, 2015

Long term borrowing net-off current maturity

Project loan for Unit- IV and mother vessel

Synchication lnan
Term loan

Hire purchase loan
Frirme Bank Limited
Shatjalal lslami Bank Limited

Less | Current portion of long term bomowing (note; 2200

304000000 3049000000
(31440000)  (91440000)
2,956,560,000  2,956,560,000
78,744

953108921 1484095250

B L S R

16,167,553 5,862,396
sl :
32,055,847 5.962.396
985,164,768  1,490,136,388
556,232,245 543,787,000

L e
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17.01  Details of long term borrowing is presented below:

SL# | Mame of lenders  Typeof loan
Tem loan [one-off]
fo reting defered
import documernts
of ncean going
vessel, Packer of
Unit-\ and Burgo

| Loader

| The Hongkong and Shanghal
| Barking Corparation Limited

e IF'-T-J'EEE’EEME‘:I

_|Prme BarkLimited ___ e purchase joan
1 |Snahjalal lslami Bank Limited

| Hire purchasa oan

Security for term loan;

30.06.2015 30.06.2014
Taka Taka
Amount in BDT | Tenura
953,108,521 5 yaars
16167553 | Jyeas
15886254 | dyeas

AR amounting to Taka 1.G5B4E9.108 with HSBC Is leneg as colateral agalnst term koan

Security for hire purchase loan:

Jant Cramership of 1he vehicles to be protured duly irswed covering | st party comprahensive insurance.

18.00  Liabilities for gratuity
Dratuity
Dpening balance

Add : Provision mage during the year

Less : Paymentsfadjustment made during the yeer
Closing balance

Deterred tax liabilities
Opering balance

Add : Frowislon during the year
Closing balance

19.00

19.01 Details of deferred tax calculation

£4,132 4R 13831,153
15443436 31192220
63,575,944 45,023,383
3586316 B=0.935
59,989,628 44,132,448
245,725,120 185 583552
B4.211387 AD141 468
309,936,506 245,725,120

{8} The tax effects of temporany dfferences arise from tax base and accounting base of relevant assets and liabilties

Deferred tax assets
iProvision for gratuity
Allowence for doubtful debt and Impalrment

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment

14,007 407 10422781

_ Nbe7ze2 3323266
26,025,169 14,285,046
(335961675 (259.971.166)
335961675  (259.971,165)
(309,936,506)  (245,725,120)

ihl The tax effect of temporany dfferences anses from tax base and accounting base of revaleed assats

Deferred tax liabllity on revaluation reserve
wpening balance

Less : Transfemed to retaned eamnings

Closing balance

Total

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 2014-2015
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014
Taka Taka
20.00  Trade payables
Suppliers 126122045 107983409
126,122,045 107,983,409

F'-E-E'r'ec-f the ahove trade payaties s a5 below:

' upto 1 menth ' 1-3months  3-6 months |Above Emonths  Total

Supediers | 56,091,84713 3349178246 722749050 | 29310525 126122045
Tatal . 56,091,847 33,491,782 7.227.491 29310925 126,122,045
£1.00  Other payables
Creditor for other finance (note 21.01) 35714986 24,158,339
Cregitor for resenue expenses note 21,000 114453879 112836514
150,168,865 134,994,953
21.01  Creditor fior other finance (note: 21)
Secuiity deposit 4343078 4,144 244
Advance agalnst sales 20400 EQ.200
VAT deducton at source 0002459 9501,073
Tax deduction &t source 5949238 4. 7940977
Fayable to employees provident fund 1355762 1,227,005
Srhance sgainst motor oyce 1,838 550 1213877
Advance against motor car 1,104 660
Employee tax payable DE0E1S  BIBSES
35,714,986 22,158,339
21.02  Creditor for revenue expenses (note: 21)
Salaries, wages & ouertime payable £4.431,308 17.774858
Audit and professional fees 450,000 450,000
Electricity bil f9 730785 37865 366
Tefephone bl 552 246 522,620
Ltilty kel £5.8950 19,955
Fayable agalnst financial experse £ 220546 37 810,751
Fayable to Aunited Maritime Business [(Put) L, - 20,503,060
Others 2,180,764 2868934
Payable agalnst advertlisemen! expense 20450230 -
Fayahle against revenue expense 108525449 :
114453879 112836614
2200  Current portion of long term borrowings
Project loan for Unit -IV and mother vessel
Term loan 42497837 539671000
542497837 539,671,000
Hire Purchase loan
Frime Bank Limited 5 9ed 400 4,116,000
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 5790012 -
15,734,412 4,116,000
558,232,249 543,787,000
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Securities for short term loan:

30.06.2015 30.06.2014
23.00 Short term loan Taka Taka
Cash credit (hypathecation)
One Banik Limited 5528553 139955.293
Prime EBank Limited 6,595,380 22567 044
The Hongkeng and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited 73508617 54450962
Eastern Bank Limited 25,956,500 9445444
|ETiuna Bank Limited 3,532 BIG 35465544
IFIC Bark Limited 25,868,787 -
149,806,673 £81,959,893
Loan against trust receipts
One Bank Limited ob,b41.582 51787433
Prime Hank Limited 2918185 5357477
Eastern Bank Limite 12833081 B973039
The Hongkeng and Shanghal Barking Corporation Limited 440801 494 3£3858.133
Shahjatal Isami Bank Limited 9451070
Linited Commercial Bank Limited > 136367091
|armiana Bank Limiteg T ef283.330
517502734 581377528
Time loan
One Barik Limited 334,856,886 190,251,923
Prime Bank Limited S0.016.782 34544353
Eastern Bank Limited 451,550,301 209,397,292
The Hongkong and Shanghat Hanking Corporation Limited 200 0a00a0 -
Jetrte Bank Limitet! 328529 1630777
IFIC Bank Limited 146,232,008 28,278,058
Shahatal Is'aml Bank Limited 108545618 .
Standand Chartered Bank 353116615 0
1.747.647,139 479,179,302
Dffshare loan
Prime Bank Limited 142,106,604 105816434
The Hongkong and Shanghai Barking Corporation Limited 1,000 489542 425127511
Eastern Bank Limited 130226460 342657841
Jamiuna Bank Limites 44,4497 B30 181,338,541
Shahjatal I=ami Bank Limitsd 134,398,430 32390820
IFIC Barik Limited - 71942554
One Barik Limited 72 B E70 478089320
United Commercial Bank Limited = __ 163155006
standardChartered Bank c02856620 -
LIET660.216 1800538271
4142616763 3,143,054,994

[} Registerad hypothecation [Pari- Passa) an entire floating assets of the company with other lenders.
{by Persoral guarantee of all the directors of M. Cement Factory Limited

) Notarized IGPA 1o sel the fypothecated assets of the Bormower.
{d) Dermand Promissory Motes & Letter of Continuity amount covering the imit of short term kan,
[2) Diwidends payment will not excead profits relating to that year,
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The company has been enjoying the following short term facilities from various bank under the terms
and conditions given below:

Sl# | Name of the bank

| Type ofloan Limit of loan  Purpese of loan

Tenor | Nature

1 'Ene Hank Limited Carsh Credit Hypothecation Hltl:]ﬂﬂ:lﬂ- waorking Capital | One Yeor Revoiving
|2 .D::: EEnkLmImd. Loan against rust receipts | ﬂiﬂmﬂ.ﬂﬂl} \Worieng Capital | 150 cays Revolving
3 |One Bank Limited Revoheng time loan | 300,000,000 working Capltal 20 days Revolving
& |One Bank Limited | Letter of aedit {non funded)| 750.000,000 Working Cagital | 120 days Revoiving
| ' To Bsue puarantee '
5 |One Bank Limited Bank gusrantes 10000000 for tender and  One Year Revohing
. L-Iﬁﬂ-E'E.f!lbﬂ"[E
6 |Prime Bank Limitad Cash Credit Hypothecation | 50.000.000| Wokng Capital | One Year | %n:u.rnMng
7 |Prime Bank Limited L::uanagalrrst trustrecelpts | 520000000 'h'D'iiTIEI Capital EI:I-anE QEu.rull.dn_El
B |Prime Bank Limited Rewolving time loan 130,000,000 Worong Cagital | 90 days | Revolving]
9 |Prima Bank Limited | Letter of cradit {non fmﬁetl} 550,000,000 |Working Capital |~ 90 days Revahing|
‘Inmﬂgluenlee
18 |Prime Bank Limited Bank guarantes Sﬂ_m-ﬂmrfnr ten::erand (e Year Revalving
11 |H58C Cash Credit Hypothecation | ﬂﬁﬂmﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ wmmg EEE|1-E|| e Year Revoling|
e [H5E0 Loan against trust receipts 1,5l}D£ﬂﬂ.ﬂE1J Warking Lapital 150 days| Revalving|
13 (H58C Letter of credit {non funded) 1,500,000.000 | Working Capital 150 days Revalving|
RS T
14 [HEC Ban guarantes A0000000| for tengerand  One Year Revalving
{utiities faclities |
15 |Jamuna Bank Limited | Loan against rust recaipts | 100.000,000| Hl:rkmg Capital 12ﬂ{ﬁysfﬂmmng,
15 {|amura Bank Limited | Revolving time loan | 250000000 Working Cagital 120 days| ‘rleuulmngl
17 |jarnuna Bank Uimited Letlac-fcrem-lnmfunded] 400.000,000 Workng Capital | 180 days| Revolving|
18 |Jamuna Bank Limited | Cash Credlit Hypothecation | 500,000,000 Workng Capital | 180 days| Revohing
| 19| Eastern Sank Limites L'E'TEE':rdelit{nmfﬁH‘lL'ElﬂH 150,000,000 Workng Capital 180 2ays Jevaling
| 20 |Eastern Sank Limite Cash Credit Hypothecation | 50,000,000/ | Workng Capital | One Year, i:euul-.nng
| To ls5ue puerantes
21 |EasternBank Limited | Bank guarantes Z0.000,000 for tenderand e 'r'ear'qmll.ﬁng
I utibties faclities
| 22 |EasternHank Limited | Ha-.tf-mg time loan SEI:],EI&:J.&:]D Working Capilal 1EIEI-tays f!euulmng
| 23 |Eastern Sank Limites | Loan against rus? receipts | ‘.FSIJ,EI:]‘ELI:]:]E Warking Capital 150 says Eemluing!
| 24 |EasternBank Limitec | Mandate letter sm.u:mmn \Working Cagital | 180 cays Revolving
25 | Shanjalal isiami Bari L1 | Letter of credkt fnon funded)| 600000000 Workng Caphtal | 180 days Revolving)
i) 'EI'ai'ﬂaFai’rsfan':Eantdm Loan against Trust receipts | 452000000 Warkng Cagital | 130 cays Revohing|
To Esue guarsntas
£7  [shahjalal kiami Bank Lid.| Bank guerantes 100000000 for tencer and — Dne Year | Revalving
. utikties faciities :
| 28 |IFICBank Limited Letter of cradit {non Iunﬂeﬂ}'ljrnﬂmﬂuﬂ \Workng Cepital 180 cays|Revolving
| 29 |FAC Bark Limited Lgan agalnst 1]'LI5HEEE|D'£5 | 700,000,000/ Workng Capital | 180 tays Revoling
30 |IFK Bank Limited Rewoiving Time loan | 300.000.000 Working Capital | One Year Revolving
| 3 |IFK Bark Limited | Carsh Credit Hypothecation | 100,000,000 Working Cagital | One Year Revolving|
| 32 Lirited Corpmesgia Bare Ui, 'l.ettal:ﬁfrrelit{mm ﬁlnded] BOOD000I0]  Working Capital 1E!2I-r.ﬂyz. ’-lm.rulumgl
| 33 | Linitnd Commescia Bank L1, | Loan against rust receipts | SI:I:ZID:I:]J:I‘JG working Capltal | 180 days| -’Emrnlumg
| 34 |Standard Chartered Bank| Letter of credit non funded) 500,000,000 Werking Capital 120 gays| &En.n:ulumgl
35 |5Ea_|1|:larﬁllrar_t§r§_|gﬂaﬁ-: Loan agalst rustrecelpts | 700,000,000 Workng Capital 120 cays Revoling|
| 3% |5ta1dartftt'arterﬁfhnk Cash Credit Hypothecation | 20.000,000) Working Cagital | 120 days Revolving]
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24.00

25.00

26.00

£6.01

£6.02

26.03
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014

Taka Taka
Provision for tax liabilities
Opening balance 395049741 240,504,893
Add - Provislon made during the year 143173273 154,544,648

538,222,964 395,049,741
Less: Adustmient

Assescment years _ =
2012-2013 121820733
2013-2014 . 124007810

245676543 =
292,394,421  395.049,741

Liabilities workers' profit participation fund (WPPF):

Opening balance 44,453,789 44,054,330
Less : Payments made during the year 44,453,789 44,054,330
Add - Provision made during the yex _ 4B LED AR453.788
Closing balance ) 42,811,780 44,453,789
Revenue

Domestic sales {note: 26:01) TBI7A15375 7481152616
Export sales AAEEZS A0 SOALARD,O95
Net sales _5,c64,240.985 _ 7,990,64¢,611

Ir e year 201 4-2015 revenue of the Dampany has noreased by 3.42% a8 compared 1o the year 2013-2014.
Domestic sales ncreased by 4.21%, however, the export sales decreased by 12.30% during the year comparing
Previous year,

Incoene from export eamed in forsign oerency amoanting to LSO 5,802 %30 equivalent to Ts. 446325610,

Domesthc sales net of VAT
Cement sales ABTT ATV, A5 ELARIG
Chinker sales - 55,500.000
Domestic sales 7817415375  7481,152616
Domestic sales net of VAT 7817415375 7.481,152.616
During the year, we have contridsted 1o natonal exdhequer amounting 1o taka 1,190,347, 184,18 as VAT,
Quantity wise sales
: 01-07-2014 10 H'G*bﬁ-zﬂli . 01-07-2013 to 30-06-2014

Particulars Quantity Amount in Quantity Amount in
| MewiTon | Taka  MewicTon | Taka
Domestic sales | 1,196,146 | 7B17A1S375 | 1122538 | 7A4B1IG2E16
Exportsales | 7387000 | 44BHZ5610 81,240 5094899595
Total | 1,272,016 8,264,240,985 1,204,078 7.990.642,611
Category wise quantity sokd are:

Particulars | Quantity (MT)
Bagcement | 165,558
Bulk rement | 1 0=.459



30.06.2015 30,06.2014
Taka Taka
27.00  Costof sales
Qpenimg stock of raw materiats 285610492 2502426709
Add; Purchase of raw materals during the year B.152,142.497 2833315645
Less :Closing stock of raw material __[45BEBHATY) _ [2B5610492)
Raw materials consumed [note: 27.01) 5,965.084,578 L.B50.133.861
Opermg stock of busting bags -
Factory overhiead [nate: 2705) 517254622 521,154,714
Cost of production 6,886,339.201  6,771,28B8,575
Add | Openirg finished goods - 2263 1,268
Cost of goods available for sale 6,886,341,464  6,771,289,843
Less : Closing finished goods (2.7 B5) [2.2B3)
Cost of sales 6,886,339,298 6,771,287.580
Less :Duty draw bck for export __(35790015) _ (3I560.169)
Cost of sales 6.850,549.283  6,731,727.411
27.01  Raw materials consumed

Dpening stock of raw materials Quantity
Clinker MT 2482618 128173824 153.002515
Cypsum MT 591 83 7451493 16297 346
Sl MT JEB3BG0 1135978993 I TTTELT
Fly ash MT 1045314 Z035857 25360682
Lime stone MT 475984 fr4Bag/s 3E52E94
Cement grinding akd MT 2500 1BEIORE .
Bags PCS F50,95000 BLOZ7 BB 16,137 815

285610492 252,428,709
Add : Purchased during the year Quantity _
Clinker MT Q1324697 4,726,583.454 4584813912
Cypsum MT 5307800 135374.5930 143170737
Slzs M7 155,7000C 426128154 443 556,597
Fly ash M7 150,884 00 314216279 07 BALESE
Lime stone M 2720821 54667553 23,255 56
Cemen grinding aid MT 84958 73720003 | B70818
Micro silica MT 5700 1456345
Bags PCS 2334000000 416000774 378502422

b,15¢,142497 5883315645

Less : Closing stock of raw materials Quantity i
Clinker MT F151B1R FF0N13674 128173824
Cypsum MT 2875490 1585004 7451443
Ml M 4175958 11593997 113576593
Fly azh MT 1048650 21,745,155 20358571
Lime stone MT 312090 B181919 7746587
Cement grinding akd MT E£355 4591504] | B70ETE
Bags PCS 8608900 1233582 6027616

4GB,666411 ean b1 0452
Raw materials consumed 5.969,084.578 5.850,133,861
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27022

27.03

30.06.2015
Taka

30.06.2074
Taka

A5 ped nature of the Compaty's manufacturng oiooess and packing system there is itthe scope of having packed
fizhed cement In the stock. Cement i= only packed &t the fime of delivery by tiucks Le, the cement s packed inthe
bag wwen trucks arrhve at the factory for taking delivery,

Particulars in respect of opening stock, sales and closing stock of finished goods

Opening Closing Sales for the year
Quantity MT) Value | Quamity (MT)[ Value | QuantityMT) | Value .
Year 2014-2015 040 2263 | 040 2165 1272016 | B264,240985
Year 2013-2074 020 1268 | 040 2253 1204078 | 799064251
Finished goods movement In Taka and quantities
01.07.2014- 30.06.2015 - 01.07.2013- 30.06.2014
Particulars Quantity Amount in Quantity Amount in

o (Metric Ton) Taka | [MetricTon)  Taka
Ooening stock 040 | 2263 | 020 | 1,268 |
Add: Proguction during the period | 127201622 |  6B86339.201 | 1194079 |R771,288575
Goods available for sale 127201662 |  BEBR3414Rd | 1194079 |6/71.299843
Less: Cost of goods sold 127201622 | 6886335258 | 1,194,078 |6.771,287,580
' Closing stock 040 | 2,165 040 | 2203 |

A oer compary's palicy any bag of cement remained l_ndEIrLrEfEﬂ in the siock & consdered as finshed product
Thus the abowe amount represents the cost of B (eight) bags of cement remained wndalivered on 340 June 2015,

Analysis of raw material consumption
#14-2015

Particulars Opening Closing | Consumed for the year

. MT/Pcs  Amount  MT/Pcs  Amount | MT/Pcs  Amount
Clinker (MT) 2482618 128173824 T_I.E]E.'IEI 370,17 13.5?4| BEE.EE-E.EI?-#.#EH.E-#FJ.EMI
Ciypoeurm (M) _ 2549183 7457 463 eB75.50 T".EEIE.!]-M; E.E.'.'I"EEI.EIE_ 139,247,364
Slag (MT) IRE3ER0 . 1139739593 417559 EEI‘EI‘BII‘| 19036267 528 213,156 |
Fly 2ch (MT) 1046314 20358571 1048650 2‘1 ?45 1S0BE0E4| 312829695 |
Lime stone (M) 425684 Jj4HEE7 312080 618 EH':r| 2BIEINS| ShZFapd: |
Coment grirdrg ad (1] 2500 1870818 64355 43,815,041 | 33104 25675780 |
Micro shicaMT) = =0l 1Ase34E
Bags (cs) 35085000 6027616 8600900 1533562 2360486100, 420485008
2013-2014 i -
~ Opening | Closing | Consumed for the year |

Particllafs WiiPes  Amount | MY/Pes | Amount | MT/Pcs | Amount
Cinker (MT) | 3057824 153002515 2482618 128173824  B92R4BE2 4509542503
Gsum MT) | 586733 1625/3% 259183 745483 5287550 152016599
Slag (M) 1302774 37777657 3BE3MWE0 113978993 12517704 367355261
Fly ash {MT] 1329737 25.360A87 1046374 | 20358571 16069323 317GETEEA
Lime stone (MT) . gednBy | FLESE‘_.EH‘I-_ 4,?5!}.&4. TI',TI'"IE,QH?I 1E-,E4F‘.FJEI: 19,358,313
Cerment grinding aid 3 - 2500 | 1870878| 3 e
s {pcs] 0843300 1BJ3VEIS 3005000 | GOZFRIG| 226534300  IEE0NZ4l)
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£7.05

30.06.2015

Taka

Dreak up of riw mlerials punchase &S e requinesend ol Pars B, Schedale {1, Fart ||, of the Cospanies Act 15094

Al -2015

Rams
Liyriain ;M)
Fy i )
Lima stone [MT}

I."amrlr g'rr'rlrgm:
LT sica M7} )
Sl

201532014
lvems
Clinker (MT)
Gypeuse. M)
Sl (M)
Fly exsh (M
Lime 5eane [MT}
Cement grinding aic {HT)

G s

| BABRIITAIE 4255994008

Purchase in Taka
Impart i Local
i, 720 5E3 454 -
RESEr
q21. 2B 1 &9
SO B, AT PER e L=y
147 rany 4 RS LET
'J'fj,?ﬁiifi_n? : ]
| TSRS - ]
[ AR
5678022528 474119970
.....  Purchase in Taka
mpart Listal
4561053512 3, 760000
T43F70,737 -
-1:11555,597-‘
307 665553 -
. 23455 BlE
1E7OEE |
AHSES 422

The value of rr'|'u1-rr|:'|:l raw materia. i calrulated an CF basis

Factory owverhead
Anrual milad & picric
Bedding and urifam
BiWT A experme
Computer accessories
Contritntion o FF
Comeyanca
Depreclation

Cireciors' remungration
[anation & subscipran
Electricity bil
Entartalnmanit
Fastival bonue

Fued for mator wehice and matar cycle

Gratuity
IMELFanCe premilm

G U anoe i

Labour charga

Liesaue encashimen]

fusoit & professional’ consultancy legal faes
Lutricants, diesid of, gear ol B fuel 21¢,
Medical expenses

Gltt & presentation

Mabils phara 3il

Qffice mairtenance

Renit & rates

Chiertime

Printing, stationeries, schedule & forms
Chiling Testng expenses

Registration likence & renewaks
Fepair & maintenance- venlde & mebor oycle
Spare parts & s tone aapanses
Telephones fax axpenses

Training & educaticn

Travelling expenses

Wigas. shlary ard slowance

[y doce expense of mother vessa|

Totad

4726583454 |
13 57950 |
426126159 |
114216279 |

CLRATEET |
TR0 |
1456345 |
AIGO007T4 |
6,152,142,497

Towl

ASBARTIEZ |
143170737 |
443556507 |
307 BE555T |

£ FARA00

1870818 |
3/6He e |
5563, 5TE845 |

in

Taka
dABLEAT G4
139241 364
L2513,1556
41 2 B0
S6228627
BT
1456345
'ﬂﬂl.-ﬂ-":lb.[.-‘l:ﬂ I

5,969,084,578 |

| Comsumption in

Taka
A0 EAZADT |
15201655 |
367 355,261 |
T IEETHER |
19356114 |

|
165 052 421
S.B50,133.881 |

1,144,745
1004.820
7039299
14527
1533575
£12438

203,737,840

B.S7E,250
126,100

413806,334

3363581
7113502
1368539
rhaE Ay
2619030

406553
16315774
1385714
S0:000
16003257
73820
b.132.584
L35898
JEiE1Y
2032 223
101750
1,135,530

| BBEAES
22589
1,143,185
17257238
5817
231,553
2538700
72541549

917,254,622

136571 ¢
351,165
2511308
105,160
1507 57d
378450
25108257
7 0E0 250
155,000
37003023
31396,933
BIT0756
1312405
16200 697
21414526

152497453
BOF 78S
20,399
16041,219
35775
SR 1HT
4279749
R
2146574
AERT T
10495, 154
1471081
233561
12771081
F2753.074
SEAME
734,550
185305
63205644
§4.120,348

821,154,714
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Other operating income
Income from mother vessel doeration

Administrative expenses

Acheer tsement & pubboity

Annual general mesting expenses
Audit & professionalf consultancy! legal fees
Doubt ful deht expense

Badding & uniform

Board meeting attendance fees
Computer accessies

Contrbution fo PP

Conweyane

Corporate social responsbility (C5R)
Depreciation

Dirsciors’ remunesatian

Donation & subscription

OsEr CSESCOBL pxpenses
Entertainment

Festval Bonus

Fuel for mator vehicle and motor cycle
Cratuity

INSLFANCe premium

[soug INsLrance presmim

Intermet

Labauf charge

Leave encashment

Loss on sake of assets

Cift & presentation

Mahike phone bi

Otflce maimenance

Rent and rates

Overtime

Frintg, slationernzs, schadule & T
Registration, licence & renewais
Repalr & maintenance- wehicle
Salary B afowances
Telephones fax expenses

Trainirg Bedecation

Travelling expenses

Lit#ty expenses

Letwicants! deessd ofl far penerato

30.06.2015
Taka

23460000
£3.460,000

540543
1410632
273,522

31033114

153,577
1529500

152,531
1,355,705

538091

257210

18.650,002
9,600,000
1,730,000

290,608
5,230484
4,04852¢

925,855
5,258,063

135435

TBGE184

568,333

2550
1009215

6,552,597
920,525
2952722
6,383,750
160028
2,173,285
247,851
857,033
45,362,715
109,536
75,560
1493577
1 846,067
181,000

157,173,325

30.06.2014
Taka

£3,430,000
23,430,000

7414600
1733083
£460.125

118,720
S66,000
144418
1,153,651
540,578
24660
20433267
8600000
311,000
215392
3162330
3237721
926432
6267964
80,654

Loa93,
1220

621 a64
2560
460566
178
2BE5. 767
5742 a50
102458
2059544
7949828

a7 537
32800053
1164807
62234
0%
1,360,364
180714
114,206,125




30.00

Selling and distribution expenses
Achvertisement & publicity

BI% expense

B571 Tees

(EF expendes for export
Audit & professianad consultancy/ legal fees
Computer acoessones

Contribation to PF

Convevance- local

Corparate socal resporsiblity (CSR)
Carrizge expense

Depreciation

Diractors” remuneration

Uanatian & subeciplion
Entertainment

Festhal boms

Fuel for motor veriche and matar cycle
Gratuity

Group Me@ance premium

Gitt & presentation

In=aFance premivm

Labour charges

Leave encashment

Lose on sale of assats

Medical expenses

Mobile phone bill

Cffice malntenance

Rent and rates

Cutstation allowance! house rent! TA-DA
Cwertime

Printing stationares, schadule & forms
Promotiong expenses

Cuality testing expendes

Registration lcence & renewats
Repair & maintenance- wehice & mator cycle
Salary & allowances

Training & education

Telephone/ fax expenses

Traveling expenses

MNon operating income

Sales of scrap
(ither moome

Reaizedd unreaissd profit £ (loss) on investment on shae

Dividend on share

30.06.2015
Taka

B5.217 634
74954
1837850
3,263,300
479,250
1,004
208527
£330431
3654703
285,200
16014814
£,975.250
B2 A5
2213379
SE75873
4534 877
870,704
edl e
5181824
322860
19,148,768
1395520
62045
50,000
3388857
e A
Z00. 188
1885942
411,70
2411590
4.876,580
Brr514
2183430
3,1 68 880
s e i
134311
30,772

5015,121
3012016
(ER536E73)
4453007
6,630,465

30.06.2014
Taka

73973339
4B1.708
1,651,900
3,780,560
361,550
444892
1.553063
4,337,204
830,000
9724800
15,171,985
7.080,250
£.2590,560
6074126
4459494
3159021
ga71 824
27529
586137
1056595
8031594
g14002

£/6d45/058
671,707
1,135.272
1.876.753
517407
115187
2914213
571,165
2255839
| 83575
50912561

17443
4,551,009

231034368

F2d2aTg
10089597
19085557

4581758

40,979,579
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014

Taka Taka
32.00 Financial income/f [expenses)
Interest income from FOR and others 265413135 327,682,132
MNet pechange gaind (loss) [1.697,204) =964 048]
Bank charge & commission (9648448 {9.200.455)
Bank interest [369.630,59G) (378.7268654)
(131.557,113) (66.211.046)

33.00 Income tax
Major components of tax expenses

In comgiliance with the requirements of para-79 of BAS-12 (ncome tax), the major components of tax expenses
are gven belmas

Current fax expenses 143173773 154 R4 B4R
Defermed 1ax expenses 64.211387 6,141,458
207,384,670 214,686,316

33.01  Reconclilation of tax expenses and product of accounting proflt

I comgllance with the requinements of para-81 (b) of BAS-12 [Income tax], the reconcilation of tax expenses and
product of accounting profits are given: below:

Accounting profit for the year BSE 35604 285,075,730
Less : Share of profit of equity- accounted investees 35300.741 21656322
816,934,863 B67.419.458
Tax on accounting profits @ 25.00% 204.233.716 238,540,351
Addtdeduct) - 7 5% rebate for dividend paid 5 (#3854035)
focided.ct: Effects of provtson adustment due to finalztion of prior jear assessment 3,150,854 L
Tax eapenses tor the year 207 384,610 214,686,316
34.00 Share of profit from associates (from note- B)
Share of loss of Crown Power Generation Limited (CROL) - -
Share of Ioss of Crown Cement Concrete and Bulkding Products Limited (CCCBRL)
Share of loss of Crown Transportation B Logestics Limited (CTLL) - -
Share of profit of Crown Mariners Limited (CML) 39.300,741 21,656,342
39,300,741 21,656,322

Share of profit or loss from investment n assoclates are not considersd in compatation of oument tax expense
dgnce, these are separate entities having <esarate Taxpayer ldentification Mumber (TIN] and being amed
separately, Income from imvestment in associates will be teken into account wpon receipt of the dividend from
fespective entithes

35.00 Eamings per share (BAS - 33)
Basi 2amings per share

Eaning attriputabie to ordnary shareholders _B4BE50994 574389465
wWekgnted average number of erdinary shares {calculation as below) 148500000 148,500,000
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 4.37 4.54_

M. |. Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 2014-2015
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37.00

3rm

i7.02

37.03

37.04

37.05

37.06

37.07

37.08

38.00

38.01

30062015 | 30.06.2014
Taka Taka

Calculation of weighted average rumber of ordinary shares outstanding during the period from July 2074 to June
2015 is gven below:

| No.of shares No. of shares

Nature of share  Number of . Period Days of share i
. ding  outstanding
holdings shares |  holding | S914-2015  2013-2014
Ordinary shares 148,500,000 ID;EEEE:T rltu 365 | 148500000 | 148500000
_Total_ 148,500,000 | = | 148,500,000 148,500,000
Met Asset Value [NAV) per share
Met assets (total assets - intangible assets - total iabilties) SA7a.329648 5675411006
Murmber of ordinary shares 148,500,000 148,500,000
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share 39.59 38.22

Motes to the statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows shows how the Company’s cash and bank balances changed during the
year through Inflows and outflows.

Cash received from customers
Lross cash recetved from customers arrived at after adusting accounts receivabies with revenue for the year,

Cash pald to suppliers
Cash paid to various suppiiers arived after adisting of raw materizls and consumption oost of spareparts
corsumied with crediters for rade supples.

Cash paid for operating expenses
Cash paid for aoerating expenses arived 3t after adjustng non-cash tems and creditors for reveniue Spenses.

Income tax pald
During the year the Company pald Tk 3209530598 a5 advance noome tax

Purchase of property, plant & equipment
Investment relate oot Pows of cash and casgh equivalents for fiesd assets.

Dividend paid
In the year 2014-2015, the Company paed divicend of Tk 445500000

Short term loan received
The itemm regre=ents net increase of short tesm ioan fram various banks smourting to Tk B99561,.760

Contingent liabilities/ off balance sheet items

Commitments 629262532 639074965
Contingent llabdities 151,055,367 171073613
780,318,899 810,148,498
Commitments:
Letter of credit
Eastern Bank Limited 134107213 21,869,800
The Forghons and Shangnal Banking Corporation Limited 171919450 352350419
One Bank Limited 111418947 BI674471
|amuna Barik Limited 480475 17,985,088
Frime Bank Limlteg : 2556000
Standard Chartered Bank 2028585620 1654505672
IFIC Banik Limited 15002035

E-!D..TH;?ED 639,074,886

M. |, Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 20142015
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014

Taka Taka

Capital commitment
Capital machinery _ BATIE?
Contingent liabilities: EE!E'EE.SSE : E?_H_,q_?-!,.!_a_ﬁ_
Bank guarantes:
Qire Bank Limeted 2533106 2533106
Prime Bank Lnited 15199116 32716367

© 17,732,222 37,749,468
Tax & VAT claim: ' -
a) Clalm of VAT Authority for dedlared wastage percentage relating to the different finandal years against which
warious writ petitions have been fiked by the company before 25820031 55820031
the Hon'ble High Court Dhaka,

b} Excess claim of tax authority regasding Interest and tax liabiity over income fax hiability provided for by the
compary s per the retum submitted for the respective years which 67504.114 67504.114
remains sub judical upto reporting date. T ’

133,324,145 133,324,145
151,056,367 l?f‘_l__,_ﬂ?i!.ﬁ 3
Financial risk management

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk that one party 10 & financial mstrument would cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to dscharge an obfgation It mainty comprises of recevables from customer, trade and mestment
securities. Ta alleviate the credt risk against trate receivable the Compamy hiss 3 policy to obtain seourity
Instruments from customers

{b) Liquidity risk

Laguidity risk is the risk that the Compary might encounter cifficuty in meeting the abiigations associates withits
financial iahilities that hawve to be 2&ttled by delvering césh or another financial assets orlshilities. The Company's
approach to managing hquidity s to-ensure that i will always have sufficlent oud 2ssets to meet Its kabllides
when due, under Both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacoeplabe losses of fsking damage o

Compary's reputations.

~ More thanone

P FromE&to 12 |
articulars months (Taka) year ;Es than
Trade payables (nome: 20.00] 29310925 .
Bank overdraft {note: 23.00) 129806573
Shart term logn from banks [note: 2200) 3952810050 =
Larg term loan from bank [nate: 17.00) L5R432 248 4765832519
| As ol 30 june 2015 ' | 4,730,159,937 | 426,932,519

() Market risk

Matat risk is defined as the risk that the fair walve ar future cash flows of a financial irstrument wil fluctuate
because of changes in market, prices The obiective of market ©sg management Is 1o manage and control risk expo-
sures within acceptable parameters wihile optimising the return. Market risk comoniges three types of risks
Currency Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Commodity Rk,



40.00

30.06.2015 30.06.2014
Taka Taka

i) Forelgn currency risk

T risk that thee fair value of future cash flows-of a financlal instrument might fluctuate becalse of changes in
foreign exchange rates The Company is exposed to currency risk on its certain short and long term debts and
purchases that are denominated In forsign cumences.

Exposure to crrency risk of the Company at reporting gate are &5 follows:

Balance at 30 Jupe 2015
 Particulars _uso 8ot
Assets
Prime Bank (ERG) J34B75 261715649
The State Bank of India (ERC) 108,102 B331.7687
| Dither recsivable (Alunited Maritime business [Pvt) Ltd) frotec] 1 003 | 37813 2 955,940
Liability
Term Loan-HSEC 12143552 48525 757
Short Tesm Loan (note23.00) ce (92 B4 1.727660216
Balance at 30 june 2015
| Particulars USD BOT
Commitment & contingencies
|The Hongkong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited 2,213,797 1731184925
| Ezstern Bank Limited 1,665,300 130.226.4E0
|0ne Bank Limited 388,350 30368570
iStandard Chartered Bank | 2,554,100 202858520
|Conversion rate 100 78.20
i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate sk arses from the fluctuation of interest rate assgned with certaln financlal asset or liablities.
Exposure 0 interest risk of the Company at the reportng dates is only related with outstanding of {shore
loandcammitment having LIBOR pluis interest rate

i) Commadity risk

Comrmadity risk arises from fluctuation of value of commodity in terms of price, guantity, cost and politica
condition of the market from o to which the Company pracure or sell product respectively. Exposure to commadity
risk of the Company at the reparting date may not be significant

Related parties transactions

Ouring the year, the Company carried cut a number of transactions with refatec partes within the normal course
of business. The name of the related parties and nature of these ransactions have been sl out i accordarce
with the prowsions of BAS-24 (Relsted party disciosure)
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014

Taka Taka
Individual:
Name of parties Relationship Bloorriii Transactions value
Cash dhidend
el Janangii Alam Chairman ol Meetng o | 67.128208 | B7.825730
i il
Cash dividend
AlhaMd Khabiudcin Molls | Managing Director |, SC3IMEEINE . | 5R 109125 | 79704000
TETILNEr 3 taon
Cash dhidend
v, Alamer Kabit Addtional Managing Director,  POAIMEEting _ | agn77353 | sopen 720
| Tefmure AL
| Cashdividend
Molla Mohammad Maznu | Addtional Managing Director| D20 MEEINE | 35961 000 | 44652250
TRTINEra TN
Cazh dividend
Ml Mizarr Rahman Mol Director sooardmeeting | 32475750 | 37492000
: e P | Temuneraion
~ Mrs. Alhgj Rokeya Begum | Sharehoider of the entity | Cash dividend | 37422000
Cash dhidend
el Almas { Shirul) Director o MEelnE o | 19761550 | 26255400
o - :en‘r.:‘:aatm_
Alhaj Md Abdur Rouf Sharehoider of theentity | Cash dhvidend 7016625 | 9355500
M Asrafuzzaman Sharehoider of the entity Cashdiidend | 7016825 | 9355500
M. Abaul Ahad Sharehowder of the entity | Cash dhidend 5613300 | 7484400
Institution:
: For i | |
Crown Power Generation L1d. | Associate COMM@NY | rovied sarvee | GB.9BB201 | 28442416
Crown Polymer Begging Lid Assaciate Company r;‘:{:‘dﬂ;ei::ﬁ' 363408608 | 285,426,026
Crown Mariners Ld, hssociate Company | OPMINE ons oo 00 |o37839853
Coowin Cemnent Conorete and . Forprovidrg I :
ﬁ!?.@'.ﬁ’.’!’?&’.‘t’?.@.“&"‘; | Associate Company rﬂiamlsewxe 24575811 _ 11.9‘84.815_!
Lt ® | pssociste Company FOrHONGNE |1 577,73 (300422790
| GPH ispat Limited Commondirectors | ForMSodpurcnased | 9479850 | 2871500 |
41.00  Mumber of employees

The company had 322 permanent employees as at june 30, 2015 (2014770} and a varying number of seasonsl
and temporary workers as required. All permanent emoioyess recehe 1o remuneration inexcess of Te36,000 per

AT DEr prployes.

Dring the year the company paid as. salaries, wages and benefits (note-27.05,29.00 ang 30.00) total

Tk. 186,587 258.
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30.06.2015 30.06.2014

Directors emolument = SN

Salary & benefits 23550500 23,760,500
4200 Capacity and producthon

Installed cagacity in metric tons {300 days bass) 1740000 1,/40000

Actual production in metic tons-during the year 1272016 1,194,075

#.0 capacity utiization 73,10 BAATH

43,00  Number of Board Meetings held during the year 2014-2015 and 2013-2014

Date of meeting ~ No.of directors attended
QuTeEr | 20142015 | 20132014 20142005 20132014
8-jul-1 4 7 7
151 Quarter g.fug-14 7-5ep-13 7 .
1014 | 260ct13 : 5
25-0ct-14 7Mow-14 7 5
2nd Curtes 8-Now- 12 : 8 "
13Dec-14 30-Now-13 B8 B
; 2f-an-15 ea-jan-14 g !
bk iMals | 8Mal4 7 7
~ 5-Apr-15 [ S-Apr-14 B 7
18-Apr-15 ~ 30-Apr-14 7 g
Z7-Apr-15 | - 7 :
e - TEMay-15 17-May-14 7 !
30-May-15 !
I 7<jun-15 £1-jun-14 7 &

44.00  Events after the reporting period

Tre Baard of Qirectors i thes meeting held on 27 October 2015 nas recommended cash dividend @ 25% ie, Taca
50 two Taka fifey Paisa) per share of Taka 10 each apgregating to Taka 371,250,000 for the year enced 30
June 2015 subject to spproval of the shareholders’ in the Annual General Meeting scheduled to b= held on 15
December 2015, The fingncial statemenis for the year ended 30 June 2075 donot include the effect of the cash
dhvidend which will be acceuntes for in the period when sharehoiders' right to recetve payment 5 established,

44.01  The following major event occurred since the financial statements date:

The Board of Directors of ML Cement Factory Livted nits 160th mesting held on 1 September 2015, at its Head
Office, has taken the decision v purchase another ooean going Mother Vessad for the company.

Trere e no other events Identified after the reporting date which reguire acjustments o discosane in thess
accomparwing financial statemers,

é&‘ F "-.-""."h-'r!'.:-.. o III-.FJ- II|-.;:::‘|'-'-..I-

Md, [ahangir Alam Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla Md. Kabir Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Chairman Managing Director Drettor Company Secretary
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M. 1. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

Heglstered Office: West Mukterpu, Munshigan]
rdgad Office: House # 1 & 7, Road # 55, Block # CEN [A), Marth Avenue, Gulshan # 2, Dhaka- 1212

Shareholders BO ASC No. No. of Shares held
] T et e e e R & g PHTECTEY (8 s el Ry, s
T I D e e e e e L
.................................................................. I:-Eﬂg sharehorder(s) of M. | Cement Factory Lid hereby appoint
i) PR woAS rRfaur provy 1o attend and vote for mesus

and an mydour behalf at the 219 .inmnalﬂeﬁerai Mesting o be held on Tuesday the 158 Decercher 2015 a1 71:00 am
at the Factory Premises. West Mukterpur, Munshigan] and at any adipumment thereaf and the poll may be taken In
consequence thereof

As withness myfour hand this..... day of 2015,
E;ll'll'ﬂ.tl
[signature of the Progy) . (Signature of the Shareholder)
B0 Account Ko

Note: The praxy form duly completed mus? be deposited at the Camaany's Head Office not later than 28 hours before
the time fied for the meeting, otherwise the proxy form will not b= accepted,

Authorized Sigrature

M. . Cement Factory Ltd, Signature Verified

M. . CEMENT FRACTORY LIMITED

Ifwe heereby record mydour presence &t the 27 50 Annual General Meeting of the Company an 15 December 2075 at the
Factory Premises, West Mukterpir, Munshigan.

Marne of ShareholderProxy e L ek
= o T S holding af.... — S
Ordinary shares of M. |, Cement Factory Lunrred

- Signature of Shareholder(s)

1. Megsenabe that ALM can onky be attended by the honptatfe shaseho'der o7 wopety consTTubed prosy
2 Peate resent this sip at the Recetion Desk



CROWN T CEMENT

M. L. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

House # 1 & 7, Boad 4 95, Block # CEM(A)L Culshan Morth Avenue, Gulshan # 2, Dhaka- 1212,
Tet =880-2-9852631, OB52633-4, 5852636, OBS264 1, Fax ; +880-2-9857543
E-mall info@crowncement.com, WeD wwie o nce ment oom

Factory  West Mukterpur, Munshigang
Tel ! B80-2-7548077, Fax: BED-2-7E4B070



